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OUR VISION

Empowering persons with cerebral palsy or
multiple disabilities to realise their full pofential

and lead fulfilled, dignified lives.

OUR MISSION

We are dedicated fo:

e Delivering fully infegrated programmes and
services at the highest standards with passion,
integrity, care, and excellence.

ABOUT US

Established in 1957, Cerebral Palsy
Alliance Singapore (CPAS) is a social
service agency that serves children

and adults with cerebral palsy and
multiple disabilities. Our fully-integrated
programmes and services cater fo the
developmental needs of clients and
maximise their functional independence
at every stage of life.

¢ Creafing awareness of cerebral palsy and mulfiple
disabilities, and advocating for equal opportunities
for all persons with the condition.

CORE VALUES

HOPE EMPOWERMENT ASPIRATION RESPECT TRUST
We seek fo inspire Our aim is to Never content with Respect is a Above all, we
hope in the hearts empower our clients the sfatus quo, we fundamental value value the trust that
of our clients. fo overcome their aspire to not only that guides the clients place in

challenges and live
a life without limits.

Member of:

enhance the lives of
our clients,
but also our service
and capabilities.

actions of our staff.

Supported by:

National Counci
of Social Service

Community
Chest

The NCSS Fund.-raising Division

our organisation’s
programmes and
services.
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CHAIRPERSON’S MESSAGE

In my first year as chairperson for the executive board at
CPAS, it had certainly been a difficult one as we tackled the
challenges and uncertainties brought about by the Covid-19
pandemic. Our management and staff had rallied fogether,
more so than ever, to find new ways to collaborate, and
continue our service provision with minimal disruptions. |
thank them for their resilient and united efforts.

TECHNOLOGY ENABLING LIVES

Cerebral palsy is a neurological condition that affects
a person’s muscle control and mobility. As a complex
condifion, many of our clients also require additional support
in areas of acfivities of daily living, learning and play.

We are pleased to share that with corporate and government
support, we were able to make significant progress in
acquiring new therapy equipment to aid our therapists in
evidence-based inferventions. For instance, CPAS is the first
social service agency in Singapore fo use the Motek C-MILL
VR+, an advanced freadmill with Augmented Virtual Reality
in our Physiotherapy department.

Existing facilities were also refurbished or repurposed
fo install smart home and living technologies. The CPAS
Assistive Technology (AT) Hub launched the Independent
Living Skills Centre fitted with new equipment and
fechnologies, such as accessible kitfchen and bathroom.
The CPAS School (CPASS) and Day Activity Cenire (DAC)
for adults were also fitted with similar technologies.

Assistive and Alternative Communication (AAC) devices
and Applications continue to play an insfrumental role
in helping our non-verbal clients overcome limitations in
speech. Through donations from corporates and the public,
we were able to empower our clients to participate actively
in lessons.

REACHING OUT TO THE COMMUNITY

While physical engagements and events may have
evolved, we remain firm in our mission to create awareness
of cerebral palsy and multiple disabilities, and advocating
for equal opportunities for all persons with the condition.

The Covid-19 pandemic has badly affected many of our
corporate donors, who scaled down corporate social
responsibility (CSR) efforts. In response, CPAS utilised
digital platforms to rally support from the wider community.

Multiple digital fundraising campaigns were launched
over the year, and our annual physical charity dinner was
instead, livestreamed while donors enjoyed meals that were
delivered fo their homes. Another important annual event for
CPAS is World Cerebral Palsy Month in October. Through
this event, we sought to partner the community in advocacy
and fundraising initiatives. The event was converted fo a
hybrid online/offline project with staff, community partners,
individual donors and corporates  stepping forward
fo participate.

We are heartened by the support of Singaporeans during
this challenging period.

The battle against the Covid-19 pandemic is long drawn,
but we continue fo seek the support of the community in our
efforts. Thank you for joining us to empower children and
adults with cerebral palsy and multiple disabilities fo lead
fulfilled, dignified lives.

P —

DR JANICE WONG
Chairperson
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EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE

-

CPAS enters our 64" year since our founding and we
have grown year-on-year in improving the lives of over
700 children and adults with cerebral palsy and multiple
disabilities.

EXPLORING NEW WAYS TO LEARN,
LIVE AND PLAY

The ever-changing Covid-19 situation in the past year,
meant that our programmes and services had to constantly
explore alfernative ways to contfinue lessons and therapy
with minimal disruptions. Our teachers and inferventionists
supporfed the transition fo Home-Based Learning, which
required precise planning and co-ordination to ensure
students can continue their learning at home.

We are constantly planning for home-based support to
bring our services to the homes of those who may not
be able to come to the centre for medical reasons. For
instance, our Early Infervention Programme for Infants and
Children (EIPIC) piloted a home-based programme for
Trans-D for children with moderate fo severe disabilities that
do not meet placement criteria for our programmes.

With the uncertainty of the Covid-19 pandemic, we are
exploring plans to reach out fo clients at their homes
through projects such as the Assistive Technology (AT)
@ Home project — a 3-year project started in May 2020 fo
loan the use of AT devices in the homes of selected clients.
More of such plans are in discussion.

CONTINUED ENGAGEMENT AND SUPPORT
FOR CAREGIVERS

Our caregivers play an integral role in complementing our
intervention and therapy. We understand the stress they
face from their caregiving role. To build a strong support
circle with other parents, CPAS Social Work Department
strengthened efforts fo continually engage our caregivers.
The Parent's room was also revamped fo make it a
conducive space for Parent Support acfivities. The CPAS
Parent Support also runs regular activities virtually fo keep
caregivers engaged and will continue fo do so.

Complementing these efforfs, our CPAS Psychology
Department also launched a new service fargefed at
families under CPAS School (CPASS). The service aims
fo provide families with psycho-education to help families
cope with aftachment-related concerns and foster bonds
with their caregivers.
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STUDENT AND STAFF ACHIEVEMENTS

The achievements of our clients serve as a festament of the
efforts that our dedicated and committed team has put in
at CPAS. Our CPASS student, Muhammad Firhad Bin Azhar
was the proud recipient of the Lee Kuan Yew Exemplary
Student Award 2020. His active involvement and leadership
in school puts him as a role model for his peers. Our Allied
Health Professionals (AHPs) are also distinguished in their
respective fields with many of them appointed fo advisory
role and/or are involved in research roles.

As we continue our efforts fo improve our programmes and
services, we hope that the community will confinue to stand
by us. Be a part, not apart. Stay safe and thank you.

Thab S

MS. LATHA KUTTY
Executive Director




BOARD
MEMBERS

© DR JANICE WONG
Chairperson
School Management Committee (Chairperson & Supervisor)
Nomination Subcommittee (Chairperson)
Staff Subcommittee (Member)

© MS TAN YEE DENG
Vice-Chairperson
Staff Subcommittee (Chairperson)
Fundraising Subcommittee (Member)
The Singapore Children’s Charities Association
of Singapore (CCA) Representative

© DR SATYAKI SENGUPTA
Honorary Secretary
Nomination Subcommittee (Member)
School Management Committee (Member)
Programmes Subcommittee (Member)

© HJ SALLIM BIN ABDUL KADIR, JP, BBM, PBM
Honorary Treasurer
Finance-Investment Subcommittee (Chairman)
School Management Committee (Honorary Treasurer)
Audif Subcommittee (Member)
Staff Subcommittee (Member)

© MR MERVYN SIRISENA, PBM
Assistant Honorary Secretary
Fundraising Subcommittee (Chairman)
Nomination Subcommittee (Member)
The Children’s Charities Association of Singapore
(CCA) Representative

© MS YVONNE CHAN
Assistant Honorary Treasurer
Finance-Investment Subcommittee (Member)
Staff Subcommittee (Member)

@ ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR ONG HIAN TAT
Member
Programmes Subcommittee (Chairman)
Nomination Subcommiftee (Member)

© MS FOO SIEW FONG, PBM
Member
Audit Subcommittee (Member)
Staff Subcommittee (Member)

© MS KOH KOK LOO
Member
Audit Subcommittee (Chairperson)
Finance-Investment Subcommittee (Member)
@ DR YOONG SIEW LEE
Member
Audit Subcommittee (Member)
Fundraising Subcommittee (Member)
Programmes Subcommitiee (Member)
® MR REMY CHOO
Member
Programmes Subcommittee (Member)
School Management Committee (Member)
@ MS MERLISSA ELVIN
Member
Fundraising Subcommittee (Member)
@® DR BICKY BHANGU
Co-opted Member
Programmes Subcommittee (Member)
@ ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR KEVIN LIM, BBM, PBM
Emeritus Chairman & Honorary Advisor
School Management Committee (Member)
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

© MS LATHA KUTTY
Executive Director
© MS CATHERINE WEE
Advocacy & Marketing Manager
© MS NICKIE ANG
Finance Manager
O Ms FOO MUI LENG
Human Resources and Learning,
Development and Consultancy Manager
© MS CATHRYN ANG
EIPIC Principal
© MRS KOH-LIM Al LAY
School Principal
@ MS BETTY TSE
DAC Manager (Adult Services)
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© MS MANJU MOHTA
Head of Assistive Technology Hub

© MS PAMPI GHOSH
Head of Occupational Therapy Department
@ MR D. SENTHIL KUMAR
Head of Physiotherapy Department
@® MR PARANDAMAN S$/0 THECHANAMURTHI
Head of Psychology Department
@ MS SHELLY LOH
Head of Social Work Department

@® MS SUNITHA SENDHILNATHAN
Head of Speech & Language Pathology Department



OUR PROGRAMMES K/\/

Early Intervention Programme for Infants and
Children (EIPIC)

For children up to 6 years old

EIPIC provides early infervention for children with identified needs between the ages
of a few months to six years old. A Trans-Disciplinary Approach is integrated into the
curriculum. A multi-disciplinary feam collaborates with caregivers to provide holistic
education and support fo help each child maximise his or her developmental growth.

CPAS School (CPASS)
For children between 7 and 18 years old

CPAS School is a double-session Special Education (SPED) school serving students
with moderate fo severe multiple disabilities. We offer the SPED Curriculum as
recommended by the Ministry of Education. Through our mission of equipping our
sfudents with a holistic education fo live meaningfully, learn confinuously and work
productively, they learn and develop in six domains. For selected students with good
mofor and functional skills, their curriculum includes pre-vocational training.

Adult Services

* Goodwill, Rehabilitation, and Occupational Workshop (GROW)
For adults 18 years old and above

GROW is a sheltered workshop that provides vocational fraining and sheltered
employment through various projects and social enterprise inifiatives. GROW provides
an environment for self-development, and nurtures skills for community integration.

* Day Activity Centre (DAC)
For adults 18 years old and above

DAC provides day care for persons who require higher support. The primary aimis fo
nurture self-help skills through a balanced and structured curriculum of daily living,
social skills fraining, therap y rehabilitation care and recreational activities.

© CPAS Connect Alumni Programme
CPAS Connect is an alumni programme that engages former students and clients
through social activities and sports.
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OUR SERVICES Our Allied Health Professionals (AHPS) extend a comprehensive range of specialised '

healthcare and support fo our clients.

Assistive Technology Hub

Assistive Technology (AT) refers to technology that aids people with disabilities or their caregivers in
living, learning and working. The Hub provides the following services:

* Capability building of clienfs through the provision of AT suited to their needs.

e Staff training on incorporating suitable AT in the classroom sefting fo enhance clients’ learning.

e Creating inclusive and barrier-free learning and living spaces by modifying the physical environment
at the centre or in clients” homes.

Occupational Therapy

Our Occupational Therapists address the use of purposeful activities and a variely of freatment
methods fo obtain the desired level of functioning in self-care, work and leisure.

Physiotherapy

Our physiotherapists provide assessment, freafment, rehabilitation and prevention of movement
disorders, pain, injury, or any other physical dysfunction.

Psychology

Our team of psychologists have different specialties providing services which address paediatric
needs. We provide a broad array of psycho-diagnostic freatments/testing and consultation services
for a range of behavioural, developmental and learning needs. We focus on the developmental
and behavioural needs, as well as the psychosocial and emofional well-being of children
and adolescents.

Social Work

Social Workers assist clienfs and their families to cope with issues resulting from disabilities and help
the clients realise their full potenfial through the following services:

e Information and Referrolls e Link with Community Resources
 Casework and Counselling « Parents and Caregivers Support
© Home Visitations e Agency Visits

 Financial Assistance

Speech Therapy

Our Speech Therapists focus on the assessment and management of speech, language,
communication, literacy, as well as feeding and swallowing skills. Infervention through Augmentative
and Alternative Communication (AAC) is also provided by using low and high tech devices for those
with complex communication needs and reduced speech intelligibility.
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Home Management Programme (HMP)

Therapists provide home-based therapy and social
intervention at the homes of people with cerebral
palsy who are severely disabled and in need of
therapy but are unable fo fravel fo our centre.

Outpatient Programme (OP)

The Outpatient Programme provides therapy and
social interventions at our cenfre for clients with
cerebral palsy and other physical disabilities.
Therapies provided include speech and language
therapy, physiotherapy and occupational therapy.

Specialised Clinics

CPAS runs a range of specialist and medical clinics, as well as
an Equipment Loan Library. Each clinic offers specialised care by
allied health professionals and medical professionals.
 Audiology Clinic

e Feeding and Swallowing Clinic

 Seating and Posture Clinic

* Hand Clinic and Splinting

 Paediatric Psychological Testing Services

e Sensory Processing and Sensory Integration Clinic

* Orthopaedic Clinic

 Paediatric Neurology Clinic

* Medical and Denfal Clinics
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CLIENT PROFILES

Ong Jia Ci Annabelle

Gaining Independent Mobility in
Her Motorised Wheelchair

Annabelle is a 13-year-old girl from CPAS School (CPASS)
diagnosed with dysfonic cerebral palsy. This form of
cerebral palsy presents with involuntary movements, and
she faces challenges in transfers and mobility.

Previously, Annabelle mainly relied on her feachers or
classmates to help push her around on a manual wheelchair
in school. However, she greatly values independence
and hopes fo be able fo move around by herself without
requiring any help from others.

Since 2018, Annabelle has been receiving training from
a CPAS Occupational Therapist on basic safety and
manoeuvring skills in a motorised wheelchair. In 2020,
Annabelle fook part in a five-month intervention programme
as part of a research study by the Occupational Therapy
Department. Since then, Annabelle has gained confidence
and proficiency in the use of a motorised wheelchair within
the school compound. With the support from donors,
Annabelle’s wish to own a motorised wheelchair came frue
in 2021! She is now able fo use her moforised wheelchair
in extended community seftings such as nearby malls to
purchase food with supervision.

Annabelle’s motfivation and resilience is admirable. In
honing her motorised wheelchair skills, she is faking little
sfeps fowards increasing her everyday independence.

GROW Artists (From left to right):

Ang Wei Lun, Zoe Wang Shi Min, Minah Binte Mohd

Reaching Out to the Community
Through Art

The Goodwill, Rehabilitation, and Occupational Workshop
(GROW) art programme enables frainees like Wei Lun,
Minah and Zoe fo explore their interest in art.

In their weekly art sessions under the guidance of an
art insfructor, a variety of artwork and paintings of
different themes are produced. Corporate and community
partnerships provide these artists with an avenue to reach
out to members of the public.

Three artworks by GROW artists were selected fo be printed
on the National Day Parade (NDP) 2020 Fun Packs that
were distributed fo all Singapore Households. GROW also
refails lifestyle merchandises such as fowels, nofebooks
and namecard holders that are printed using selected
artwork from the artists. These and more are available on
the e-commerce platform Shopee.

Annual Report | Financial Year 2020/21




Tay Sen He Samuel & Ng Pei Feng

Augmentative And Alternative Communication (AAC)
Empowering Non-verbal Clients
What used to be a quiet and non-responsive class session, is now full of life and laughter as clients Samuel and Pei Feng from

CPAS Day Activity Centre can now participate and respond to questions by the training officers. This is made possible due o
AAC such as Proloquo2go, Voiceitt and GoTalk that were introduced fo non-verbal clients.

Samuel is now able to utilise his iPad, installed with Proloquo2go by CPAS speech therapists fo request for a change of diapers,
communicate what he wants, or reply to a question. With AAC, his shouting and restlessness have improved tremendously.

After months of training with the speech therapist, Pei Feng who was only able to mumble incoherent words, can now utilise
Proloquo2go fo make orders at the CPAS Orange Garden Café and answer questions during lesson fime.

AAC devices and the fireless efforts of our Training Officers and Speech Therapists at CPAS have empowered our non-verbal
clients, giving them an opportunity to be heard.
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NEW INITIATIVES

Pilot of Home-Based Programme
for Trans-D

Under the umbrella of the Early Intervention (EI) Continuum
Programme, CPAS Early Infervention Programme for
Infants and Children (EIPIC) embarked on a home-based
programme with three families from August to November
2020. The home-based programme is targefed af
children with moderate to severe disabilities aged between
24 months to 6 years old, who do not meet placement
criteria for other ElI Confinuum sub-programmes or are
medically too frail fo travel fo our centre.

Trans-D team members that included therapists and Early
Inferventionists took turns fo visit the families once a month
fo conduct therapy sessions and empower caregivers in
learning strafegies fo help their child practise these skills
at home.

Installation of Smart Home
Technology and Living in CPAS
School (CPASS)

With funding support from the Ministry of Education (MOE)
Curriculum Enhancement Fund, the CPASS Life Skills Rooms
1 and 2 underwent an upgrade for Smart Home Technology
and Living. The Smart Home Sysfem installation allows
students with disabilities fo experience autonomy and
independent living.

Some of the smart home devices installed include voice
command features fo control electrical appliances, smart
doorbell, smart TV, smart switches, and sensor faps. The
upgrades create a more conducive space for the teaching
and learning of daily living skills such as food preparation,
fo cater fo our students with different physical needs. The
rooms are also designed to showcase the features fo
caregivers who may be keen to incorporate such Smart
Home Technology in their living spaces for their children
with special needs.

Launch of StudiolT!

CPASS renovated the existing computer lab and launched
StudiolT! StudiolT! is fitted with a green screen and serves
as a training studio for our sfudents and teachers in the
areas of Digital Media Design and Video Post-production.
An inaugural training session on iMovie was conducted in
collaboration with our partner Apple Inc. for 30 teachers to
equip them with skills fo create simple lesson videos that
can be used in classroom feaching.

Expansion of Goodwill,
Rehabilitation and Occupational
Workshop (GROW) - One-stop
Training and Office Solutions
Digital Hub

The GROW — One-stop Training and Office Solutions Digital
Hub was sef up fo equip selected trainees from the sheltered
workshop with digital literacy skills. Shifting from fraditional
manual sub-contract projects, the GROW Digital Hub is
intended to improve open employment opportunities for our
adult frainees.

With continued support from various corporates and funding
from the President’s Challenge 2021, GROW has expanded
the scope of services provided under the hub. In the past
year, frainees were involved in basic designing of posters,
festive lanterns and production of simple handicraft items.
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Volunteer Befriender Programme
and Digital Art Workshop for
Alumni Members

The CPAS Connect Programme confinues fo support the
needs of our alumni members and engage them socially
through several new initiatives.

A pilot monthly virtual befriender programme was launched
in partnership with HearfWare Network youth volunteers.
The programme is fargeted at homebound alumni members
with moderate to severe disabilities and designed to support
the National Council of Social Service (NCSS) Beyond
Boundaries Club initiafive. The initiative aims to reduce
social isolation and improve social integration of this group
of clients through regular programmes and acfivities.

Several Alumni members also complefed a Digital Arf
Workshop Programme that equipped them with basic
design skills. Their unique designs were printed on mugs,
masks and fote bags, which confributed fo fundraising
efforts for the programme’s activities. Our Alumni Neo
Kah Whye and Juni Syafiga, who were amongst the first
batch who completed the workshop, will be instructors
fo feach their peers in the future runs of the Digital Arf
Workshop Programme.
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Project Engage

Our Day Activity Cenfre (DAC) has been conducting
gross motor lessons and music and movement
sessions for our adult clienfs with moderate to severe
disabilities. Commenced in November 2020, DAC started
Project Engage, which is modelled after the concept of
Co-Curricular Activities. Under the project, clients are able
fo select from activities such as cooking, sensory play,
music & dance, art & craft and Boccia — a precision ball
sport game played by persons with physical disabilities.
Other skills-based activities such as I.T. training and pre-
vocational fraining are also conducted to identify potential
clients that may be transferred fo a sheltered workshop.

Tech Booster Funding -
Smart Home Technology Installation
for Day Activity Centre (DAC)

Technology can help our clienfs achieve independence by
removing environmental barriers or helping to ensure safety.
DAC received support from NCSS Tech Booster funding fo
install the following smart home technology in our facilifies.

* Home-a-Genius in 3 classrooms - Using their voice and
software installed in an iPad, clients are able to switch on/
off the lights and fan, pull up/down projector and open/
close the door independently.




Voiceitt Application Pilot Project

The Speech & Language Pathology department worked with
Voiceitt on a pilot frial between October 2020 fo February
2021. Voiceitt is a new speech recognition application
which supports individuals with speech difficulties in their
daily routines in addition to the current Augmentative and
Alternative Communication (AAC) devices.

New Independent Living Skills Centre

The CPAS Assistive Technology (AT) Hub revamped the
existing life skills room fo launch the Independent Living Skills
Centre with support from Marina Bay Sands and Credit Suisse.

Fitted with new equipment and fechnologies to assist clients
with acfivities of daily living, the centre will serve as a
fraining facility for clients to learn independent living skills.
Some of the technologies put in place include a height-
adjustable wardrobe, easy-transfer bed, door aufomations
with different switches, smart home integration with voice
assistant and advanced technologies for accessibility and
environmental control.

Building Bonds - Launch of
Therapeutic Service for Special
Education (SPED) Programme
Families

The CPAS Psychology Department launched a new service
for families under the SPED programme. Through psycho-
education and adapting evidence-based intervention such
as circle of security parenting, the service seeks fo assist
these families who have experienced exisfential as well as
attachment-relafed concerns.

School-to-Work (S2W) -
Clinical Service for SPED Students

Utilising coaching on emofional regulation and social
skills, the new clinical service led by CPAS Psychology
Department was conceptualised fo provide psychological
support for SPED studenfs who face challenges with
fransitioning from a school environment fo a workplace.
The team also assesses sfudents and provides evidence-
based recommendations on suitable job placements.
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Continued Engagement and
Support for Caregivers

The Assisted Deputyship Application Programme (ADAP)
helps caregivers apply fo be deputies for their loved ones
without mental capacity so that they can make legal
decisions for them.

A webinar was conducted fo facilifate the sharing of a
caregiver’s journey to becoming deputies for their adult
child, and their experience in filing a Simplified Track
Mental Capacity Act application using the Infegrated Family
Application Management System (iFAMS).

Moving forward, the iFAMS programme will be a new
collaborative initiative with SMU Yong Pung How School of
Law and CPAS Social Work, which will be rolled out for
families in 2021.

Motek C-MILL VR+

The Physiotherapy Department (PT) procured the Motek
C-MILL VR+, an advanced treadmill for training gait and
balance using Augmented Virtual Reality. The freadmill was
funded using the Community Silver Trust (CST) Fund. CPAS
is the first Social Service Agency in Singapore fo infegrafe
this technology in our rehabilitation process.
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Back to Basics (B2B) Project -
Technology Adoption Project

The B2B project's key objective is fo increase the
productivity of our therapy intervention through process
review, job-redesign, and adoption of fechnology. The
full implementation phase of the project was completed
in May 2021, with the use of Alfer-G Anti-Gravity Treadmill
and DST Pro equipment. Several planned oufcomes
were achieved, which include an increase in therapy
infervention hours with more time for direct client tasks.
Therapy effectiveness has also improved as the Alfer-G
enables clients fo walk longer distances and af a faster
speed over the implementation phase.




AWARDS
AND ACHIEVEMENTS

/

Lee Kuan Yew
Exemplary Student
Award (LKY-ESA)

Muhammad Firhad Bin Azhar

of CPAS School (CPASS)

class Eagle 20A, is the
recipient of the LKY-ESA 2020.
The award honours students
who have risen above challenges fo

mofivate and inspire their peers. As a school prefect, Firhad
has been involved in various acfivities and represented
CPASS in external events. He is a good role model and
demonstrates care and concern for his classmates, peers
and feachers. We congratulafe Firhad for receiving this well-
deserved award.

School-to-work
Programme

Three students from CPASS
Eagle 20A were shortlisted for
placements under the School-
to-Work Programme. Thomas
Ng Thiam Hock was proposed
for  Project-INfernship ~ (PIN),
Linus Chong Zai Ping was proposed

for Further Training (FT), and Muhammad Firhad Bin Azhar
was proposed for Supported/Customised Employment
(SECE). CPAS wishes our graduates every success in their
post-school endeavours.

MOE-NCSS
Outstanding
Special

Education

Teacher Award

CPAS  School  Teacher,
Ms. Debbie Chan was awarded
the  MOE-NCSS  Outstanding
Special Education Teacher Award

in 2020, in recognition of her outstanding confributions in
educating students with special needs.

MOE Masters
Scholarship in
Special Education
(Overseas j
Award) ‘

CPAS  School  Teacher,
Ms. Gena Tan was awarded
the MOE Masters Scholarship
in Special Educafion (Overseas

Award). The prestigious scholarship is awarded tfo
Special Education (SPED) school teachers who wish fo
enhance their professional experfise and contribute o the
development of special education in Singapore.

Allied Health Professionals (AHP)
Professional Involvement

CPAS is staffed with a team of AHP who contribute their
expertise and time in their respective professional fields in
research and key appointments.

e Ms. Pampi Ghosh, Head of Occupational Therapy has
been appointed as a member of the Social Service
SkillsFuture Tripartite Taskforce Therapy Sub-team under
the Ministry of Social and Family Development (MSF)
representing the CPAS AHP Team.

Ms. Sunitha Sendhilnathan, Head of Speech and
Language Pathology (SLP) has been appoinfed as
member by Allied Health Professions Committee to review
and audit the National University of Singapore Masters in
SLP programme.

e Ms. Siti Juliana, Deputy Head of Occupational Therapy
has been appoinfed as the Principal Investigator for
her research “Impact of Driving Powered Mobility on
Performance in Everyday Activities and Well-Being”. The
research proposal is endorsed by Agency for Integrafed
Care Institutional Review Board.

Long Service Award 2020

In 2020, 35 CPAS Staff members received Long Service
Award, including 3 staff members who received the
20-year or 25-year awards. CPAS thanks them for their
dedicated service.
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EVENTS

l’,

29
CPAS Charity Livestream 2020

ZARER 2020/

CPAS Charity Livestream 2020

The annual CPAS Charity Dinner was converted fo a charity
livestream event. The event was aptly fitled “Play Your Part”
where donors were asked to play their part by contribufing
through various segments such as a silent auction and live
pledging moment.

Meal Packages from our F&B Partners were also delivered
fo our donors who could dine in and wafch the show which
was sfreamed live through our Facebook page. We would
like fo thank our donors and supporters who helped raise
over $$220,000 for the event. Donations from the event
would also qualify for a dollar-for-dollar matching under
Tote Board’s Enhanced Fundraising Programme (EFR),
subject to a cap of $$250,000.

Covid-19 Digital
Fundraising
Appeal A
#StandWithSuzy |

With  uncerfainty  brought v
about by the circuit breaker
measures, CPAS launched a
digital fundraising appeal fronted
by CPAS’s donation ambassador, Suzy.

The campaign called for support from donors fo “Don’t
Forget Us Too” as donors overlooked charities like CPAS,
which seemed less affected by Covid-19. The campaign ran
for around 3 months and raised close fo S$40,000. We are
grafeful to donors who contributed fo our appeal.
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«WORLD CERER
DT

Spare Your Change for Suzy 2020
Commemorating World Cerebral
Palsy Month

As the leading social service agency assisting persons
with the condition, CPAS dedicafed the entire month of
October 2020 as World Cerebral Palsy Month. The Spare
Your Change for Suzy campaign was held from 1 August
2020 — 31 October 2020 to encourage donors to spare
their loose change for Suzy, the donation ambassador
of CPAS.

Through various online and offline inifiatives by corporafes,
community partners and CPAS staff, we were able fo raise
over $$290,000. This was truly a campaign where every
dollar mattered, even loose change. We would like to
acknowledge all participants, donors and our corporate
matching partner, St. James’s Wealth  Management
for mafching S$50,000 of all donations on the digital
fundraising campaigns.




LEARNING, DEVELOPMENT
AND CONSULTANCY (LDC)

/
l@‘r%%
27 16

PLANNED COMPLETED
TRAININGS IN 2020 TRAININGS

330 98% - 100%

PARTICIPANTS COURSE OBJECTIVES
TRAINED MET DURING TRAINING
EVALUATION FEEDBACK

Completed Training Topics

Music Strategies and Basic Ukulele Skills in Supporting
Learning in the Special Ed Classroom

Online Routine Based Interview (RBI)

Introductory to Art Therapy, Online Workshop for People
Working with People with Special Needs

Activity Therapy, Online Workshop for Understanding and
Using Activities in Therapy for People with Special Needs

Toilet Training For Children With Special Needs (Online)
Basic First Aid with CPR and AED

Facilitating Language Communication Skills in Children
with Developmental Delays (New Course)

Strategies in Training Persons with Physical Disabilities
fo Perform Basic ADL — Feeding, Dressing and Grooming

Introduction to Trans-Disciplinary Practices in Special
Education (Online Trans D)

Communication Using AAC: Basic Theory
Online Constrained Induced Movement Therapy (CIMT)

Sensory Motor Arousal Regulation Treaiment (Online SMART)
Child First Aid

Assistive Technology for CP — 2nd Run

Brain Gym (for School and GROW Departments)

Basic First Aid with CPR and AED (for DAC only)

From leff fo right: Brain Gym conducted on 1 December 2020, Taking MAT AX fo
the Next Level — How to Implement the Best Seafing and Mobility Equipment for
your Clients on 19 March 2021 and Caregivers Training on Strategies in Training
Persons with Physical Disabilifies fo Perform Basic Acfivities of Daily Living —
Feeding, Dressing and Grooming on 25 September 2020

As LDC progressively takes steps to be the Cenfre of
Excellence for Go-To-Centre of Trans-Disciplinary fraining,
affachment, research, knowledge fransfer channel, as well
as to conduct CPAS Signature Programmes and partnering
Institufes of Higher Learning for certification programmes,
here are some of the plans we have in the next year:

CPAS confinues fo be recognised as the Approved
Training Provider for Caregivers by the Agency of
Integrated Care (AIC) for the 10th consecutive year.

We have initiafed fo plan training for mainstream
primary school special needs educators on managing
Classroom Strafegies fo manage and engage ADHD and
Autistic Students with our Psychology Department.

We also starfed work on plans to conduct a 6-Module
Certification Programme in Ayres Sensory Integration
(CASI) for Occupational Therapists and Physiotherapists
in 2021 and 2022.

We are pleased to report that we are working towards
having more frainers fo be approved by AIC fo conduct
fraining for caregivers, especially on using Augmentative
and Alternative Communication (AAC).
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FUTURE PLANS

CPAS School (CPASS) New and
Enhanced Curriculums

CPASS continues to take guidance from the Ministry of
Education (MOE) Special Education (SPED) framework and
focuses on improving learning outcomes for our students
through regular reviews.

The Functional Programme Curriculum, rolled ouf in
Academic Year 2021, will consist of seven learning
domains: Language & Communication, Numeracy,
Social-Emotional, Daily Living, Vocational, The Arts and
PE & Sports. The domain feams will create resources and
develop assessment fools to support the teaching and
learning of these domains.

Supported by MOE Special Education Branch, CPASS
is also launching a new Digital Literacy Curriculum tfo
increase digital literacy through planned module fopics and
lesson packages across the academic year. In addition, an
I.T. Enrichment programme will be conducted for selected
students to provide an intensive and focused training
platform for them to acquire skills in the areas of Digital
Media Design & Video Post-production.

Assistive Technology (AT)
@ Home Project

The 3-year project that starfed in May 2020 focuses
on bringing needs-based Assistive Technology (AT)
fo the homes of our Day Activity Centre (DAC) clients.
Assessments are conducted through phone/video calls
with interested caregivers, observations of clients in the
classroom or through a home visit fo determine pertinent
AT needs.

Some of the AT provided under the project include fransfer
wheelchairs, electrical hoisf, shower chairs and special
seafing support. The CPAS AT Hub will continue fo frial and
grow the range of AT provided to include feeding robots,
smart home technologies and fransfer beds.
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Occupational Therapy
Evidence-Based Practice

The Occupational Therapy (OT) department will be
implementing  several evidence-based practice and
intervention.

The Constrained Induced Movement Therapy (CIMT) is
planned fo be implemented on selected clients from EIPIC,
CPASS and DAC as trial before its full implementation for 10
consecutive days. OT will also procure an equipment for
Functional Electrical Stimulation (FES), which is planned
fo be implemented on selected clients from CPASS and
DAC. The implementation of CIMT and FES will allow the
measurement of pre- and post-infervention oufcomes
methodically and aid in the development of a fransfer
package for caregivers fo follow.

Development of New Psychological
Therapy Service and Resources

CPAS Psychology Department will roll out new psychological
therapy services and resources fo better support the
emotional and behavioural regulation of our clients.

Some of these plans include:

a) Psycho-Digital Therapeutics — Using humanoid robofs,
evidence-based online intervention programmes and
virtual augmented realities fo consult children with
emotion regulations issues such as anxiety/depression.

b)Social Storybook - Collaboration with professional
illustrator Ms. Neeta Bajaj for a social sforybook on
dealing with emotional and self-regulation.

c) Building Bonds Resource Book - Resource for
caregivers fo provide them with a guide on understanding
attachment from a bio-behavioural perspective.

Y 2
L
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SUMMARISED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore

Statement of Financial Position
For year ended 31st March 2021

FY20/21 FY19/20
Assets S$ S$
Non-Current Assets 12,477,654 12,334,233
Current Assets 19,765,716 18,329,627
32,243,370 30,663,860
Liabilities and Funds
Current Liabilities 2,633,652 3,091,641
Deferred Capifal Donation & Lease Liabilities 11,223,134 11,389,842
Funds 18,386,684 16,182,377
32,243,370 30,663,860
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For year ended 31st March 2021
Total Total
Income S$ S$
Government Grants 6,820,668 8,005,149
Specific Donations 1,085,200 663,723
General Donations 1,316,348 544,501
Programmes/Therapy Treafment Fees 517,385 581,669
Job Support Scheme (JSS) 2,265,215 -
Others 3,773,467 4,237,915
TOL Fee 825,972 825,971
16,604,255 14,858,928
Expenditure
Manpower 8,803,628 9,114,919
General & Administrative Costs 1,237,706 1,217,828
Upkeep and Utilities 348,125 390,602
Utilisation of Specific Fund 2,300,617 2,725,681
Inferest Expense & Depreciation (ROU Asset) 847,812 863,014
Others 862,260 738,186
Total Expenditure 14,399,948 15,050,230
Surplus/(Loss) 2,204,307 (191,302)

For our full annual report and financial statements for FY2020/2021, please visit our website af www.cpas.org.sg.
We sincerely thank all donors, volunteers, supporters, friends and well-wishers who have helped make a difference in the lives of our clients.
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SUMMARISED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore School

Statement of Financial Position
For year ended 31 March 2021

FY20/21 FY19/20
Assets S$ S$
Non-Current Assets 1,005,898 890,755
Current Assets 6,246,940 4,605,882
7,252,838 5,496,637
Liabilities and Funds
Current Liabilities 1,180,939 1,069,897
Deferred Capital Donation 473,972 473,433
Funds 5,697,927 3,953,307
7,252,838 5,496,637
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For year ended 31st March 2021
Total Total
Income S$ S$
Government Grants 8,454,493 7,855,097
Specific Donations 189,487 185,666
General Donations 13,988 71,239
Programmes Fees 102,797 100,601
Others 1,204,710 139,184
TOL Fee 668,553 668,553
10,634,028 9,020,340
Expenditure
Manpower 4,527,327 4,453,856
General & Administrative Costs 2,141,616 2,032,382
Upkeep and Utilities 241,888 219,632
Utilisation of Specific Fund 1,193,021 1,179,694
TOL Fee 668,553 668,553
Others 217,003 185,367
Total Expenditure 8,989,408 8,739,284
Surplus/(Loss) 1,644,620 281,056

For our full annual report and financial statements for FY2020/2021, please visit our website at www.cpas.org.sg.
We sincerely thank all donors, volunteers, supporters, friends and well-wishers who have helped make a difference in the lives of our clients.
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C )
HUMAN RESOURCES
MANAGEMENT

CPAS conducts an open review of staff performance annually
during the mid-year and year-end fime period. During the
annual review, managers and executives are evaluated
on (1) achievements of work fargets that are aligned with
organisafion and department goals using the Balanced
Scorecard (BSC), which provides a holistic assessment
of employees” performance in four areas: Clients, Learning
and Growth, Infernal Processes, and Financial, as well
as (2) an evaluation on core competencies where skill
requirements, attitude, and traits needed on the job are
expressed in observable terms and help employees achieve
greater performance with the right behaviours.

CPAS has 11 core competencies that are aligned to the
SkillsFuture Critical Core Skills (CCS), of which six are
evaluated this year. They are: Display organisational
knowledge, work within feams/lead teams and organisation,
develop client orientation, manage stakeholders, deliver
results, and manage self-development.

In this review, learning and development plans will be
discussed and identified.

During this period, Heads of Deparfment will also set
new work targets for the next review period. A moderation
exercise conducted by ED and HR involving all the Heads
of Department fakes place af the end of the performance
review process fo ensure that the overall performance rating
is objective and not skewed.

—>
POLICIES

Whistleblowing Policy

Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore is committed fo serving
with integrity and compliance with regulations. CPAS has
a whistleblowing policy which provides an avenue for
individuals fo report wrongdoing safely and without fear
of refaliation.

Conflict of Interest Policy

CPAS has a Conflict of Interest Policy and operating
procedures are in place to avoid or manage situations
of any actual or perceived conflicts of interest. Board
members, committees and employees of CPAS are required
fo declare on an annual basis or, as and when necessary,
make full disclosure of any inferests, relationships and/or
holdings that could potentially result in a conflict of interest
fo their functions and/or employment by CPAS. When a
conflict of inferest situation arises, the Member/employee
shall abstain from participating in the discussion, decision-
making and voting on the matter concerned.

In addition, Board members and commitfees do not receive
any remuneration for their services.

Disclosure of Information on Executive
Management

Executive Direcfor: Ms Latha D/O K P Sankaran Kutty

- Reports o Chairperson, Executive Board of CPAS
- Appoinfed 1 October 2018
- Past Job Experience:
* 2014 to 2018- EIPIC Principal at CPAS
* 2013 to 2014 - Lead Teacher at Rainbow Centre
Yishun Park
e 2009 to 2012 - Senior Teacher at Rainbow Centre
Yishun Park
* 2004 to 2008 - Teacher at Rainbow Centre Margaret Drive
© 2000 fo 2001 - Teacher at Ashmount School (England)
* 1990 fo 1996 - Teacher at Margaret Drive
Special School
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1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021
YEAR ATTENDANCE AT
S/N NAME CURRENT DESIGNATION JOINED | BOARD MEETINGS
1 Dr Janice Wong Chairperson (from 22 Oct 2020) | 2009 5/5
2 Ms Tan Yee Deng Vice Chairman 2015 5/5
) Honorary Secrefary
3 Dr Satyaki Sengupta (from 22 Oct 2020) 2009 4/5
ol o ) Honorary Treasurer
4 Hj Sallim Bin Abdul Kadir, ssw, paw, s (from 22 Oct 2020) 2017 b/5
5 Mr Mervyn Sirisena, rem Assistant Honorary Secretfary 2017 5/5
Assistant Honorary Treasurer
6 Ms Yvonne Chan (from 22 Oct 2020) 2016 5/5
7 | A/Prof Ong Hian Tat Member 2006 5/5
8 Ms Foo Siew Fong, reu Member 2011 5/5
9 Ms Koh Kok Loo Member 2011 4/5
10 | DrYoong Siew Lee Member 2012 5/5
11 | MrRemy Choo Member 2018 5/5
12 | Ms Merlissa Elvin Member (from 22 Oct 2020) 2019 4/5
13 | DrBicky Bhangu Co-Opted Member 2019 4/5
- Emeritus Chairman
14 | A/Prof Kevin Lim, ssm, reu (from 22 Oct 2020) 2008 5/5

There are no Board members holding staff appoiniments.

[

)

LENGTH OF SERVICE OF
BOARD MEMBERS

In compliance with item 7 of the Governance Evaluation
Checklist (GEC) (Advanced Tier) under the Code of
Governance, CPAS hereby declares that the following Board
members have served more than 10 consecutive years.
These members are in the minority among the current board
members in ferms of length of consecutive service.

1. Dr Janice Wong
2. Dr Satyaki Sengupta
3. A/Prof Ong Hian Tat

4. Ms Foo Siew Fong
5. Ms Koh Kok Loo
6. A/Prof Kevin Lim, sew, pau

Each of these individuals possesses in-depth knowledge
through their long service. Their expertise and continued
confribution is vital fo the Board. The Nomination
Subcommittee has not been able fo idenfity and recruit
volunteers with similar expertise and commitment fo serve
on the CPAS Board.
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Board Appointment and Term Limit
Term Limit for the Treasurer

The term limit for the Treasurer is two ferms. Each ferm is
two years.

Remuneration

In compliance with item 27 of the GEC (Advanced Tier)
under the Code of Governance, CPAS discloses that no
Board members are remunerated.

In compliance with item 29 of the GEC (Advanced Tier)
under the Code of Governance, in terms of remuneration
band, the breakdown below shows a two-year comparison
by headcount.

Financial Year 2020/21 | Annual Report

Annual Remuneration

Remuneration Band 2021 2020
$100,000 - $200,000 6 7

In compliance with item 30 of the GEC (Advanced Tier)
under the Code of Governance, CPAS discloses that there
are two paid staff members who are close members of the
family of the Execufive Head, who received remuneration
below $100,000 during the year. When a conflict of inferest
situation arises, the Executive Director abstains herself from
parficipating in the discussion and decision-making of
remuneration of the staff concerned.

Disclosure of parties involved in setting
remuneration of key staff

e Head of Depariment, HR guides Senior HR Executive fo
propose remuneration of key staff.

CPAS Staff Sub-Committee members and Executive
Director oversee and give approval for remuneration for
key management staff.

CPAS Staff Sub-Committee members oversee and give
approval for remuneration for Executive Director.




C )

SUBCOMMITTEES
AUDIT SUBCOMMITTEE AND REPORT

[

)

SCHOOL MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON | - Ms Koh Kok Loo

MEMBERS - Ms Foo Siew Fong, pem

- Dr Yoong Siew Lee

- Hj Sallim Bin Abdul Kadir,
BBM, PBM, JP

STAFF IN
ATTENDANCE

- Executive Director

- Finance Manager

- HR Manager

- Assistant Admin Manager

About the Audit Subcommittee

The role of the Audit Subcommittee is fo provide strategic
direction and leadership to ensure effectiveness in the
internal control framework for compliance.

The Audit subcommittee sets out fo:

(0) Facilitate the external and infernal audit of the
organisation for the Board to obtain independent
information about the organisation’s activities;

(b) Achieve high level of good governance and internal
control in the financial reporting process, procurement
process, audit process, information fechnology
security and operational matters, and compliance with
laws and regulations;

(c) Review the audit plans and reports of the external
auditors and internal audifors, and considers the
effectiveness of the actions taken by management on
the auditors” recommendations;

(d) Direct infernal checks on key processes to ensure
compliance with the established procedures and report
fo the Board on the findings and recommendations
for improvements;

(e) Facilitate risk assessments for beffer management of
risk associated with the key processes;

(f) Oversee regulatory compliance and whistleblower
guidelines (where applicable);

(@) Report to the Board of any financial irregularities,
concerns and opportunities; and

(h) Liaise with auditors on any significant matters arising.

CHAIRPERSON - Dr Janice Wong
& SUPERVISOR
SECRETARY - Mrs Koh-Lim Ai Lay (Principal)
HON TREASURER | - Hj Sallim Bin Abdul Kadir,
BBM, PBM, JP
MEMBERS - A/Prof Kevin Lim, BBM, PBM
- Dr Satyaki Sengupta
- Mr Remy Choo
- Ms Latha Kutty (ED)
MOE - Ms Terry Theseira
REPRESENTATIVE
PARENT - Mr Kagan Gan Keng Aik
REPRESENTATIVE | - Mr Song Chun Keet
NCSS - Mrs Pek Kwee Lan
REPRESENTATIVE
STAFF IN - Vice Principal, CPAS School
ATTENDANCE - Administrative Manager,
CPAS School

The role of the School Management Committee (SMC) is to
exercise power and authority over the general management,
operational policies and directions for the school in
accordance with the School Constitution set up by the
Ministry of Education (MOE) and the National Council of
Social Service (NCSS) for:

(a) The effective management of the School, including but
not limited to all aspects pertaining fo the financial
matters, human resource management matters
and property matters involving all existing and new
buildings, facilities and infrastructure of the School.

(b) The education and well-being of the students of the
School; and

(c) The policy for admission of students to the School.

The SMC shall ensure that the School is governed and
managed responsibly and prudently and act in the best
inferest of the students and school.
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C )

FINANCE-INVESTMENT
SUBCOMMITTEE

C )

FUNDRAISING
SUBCOMMITTEE

CHAIRMAN - Hj Sallim Bin Abdul Kadir,
BBM, PBM, JP
MEMBERS - Ms Koh Kok Loo
- Ms Yvonne Chan
STAFF IN - Executive Director
ATTENDANCE - Finance Manager

The role of the Finance-Investment Subcommittee is
fo provide strategic direction and leadership in the
recommendation of financial/investment policies, targets
and budgefs that support the mission, values and goals
of the organisation.

The Finance-Investment Subcommittee sefs out fo:

(a) Recommend policies that maintain and improve the
financial health and infegrity of the organisation;

(b) Review and recommend an annual operating budget
and annual capital budget consistent with the long-
term financial plan and financial policies;

(c) Review the financial aspects of major proposed
fransactions, new programmes/services, as well as
proposals fo disconfinue programmes/services

(d) Monitor the financial performance of the organisation
as a whole and its major programmes/services against
approved budgets, long-ferm frends and industry
benchmarks;

(e) Require and monitor corrective actions to bring the
organisation into compliance with its budget and other
financial fargets;

(f) Recommend investment policies to the Board;

(@) Appoint  investment  advisers/bankers  in  the
establishment of investment portfolio, asset allocation,
benchmarks and tolerance bands;

(h) Review investment reports from advisers/bankers;

(i) Consider appropriate opportunistic investments that
have the potential fo deliver more favourable returns
than passive risk-adverse investments; and

() Review and report to the Board annually on the
investment plan.
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CHAIRMAN
MEMBERS

- Mr Mervyn Sirisena, pev

- Ms Tan Yee Deng

- Dr Yoong Siew Lee

- Ms Merlissa Elvin

STAFF IN
ATTENDANCE

- Executive Director

- Finance Manager

- Advocacy & Marketing Manager

- Advocacy & Marketing
Assistant Manager

The role of the Fundraising subcommittee is fo oversee and
provide strategic direction and leadership fo ensure the
smooth planning, coordination, and implementation of all
fundraising activities in support of the programme, projects
and acfivities of CPAS.

The Fundraising subcommittee sefs out fo:

(a) Develop the fundraising strategy for CPAS;

(b) Implement, monitor and evaluate the strategy once it
is adopted;

(c) Develop project proposals fo submit fo potential donors
and funders;

(d) Manage and develop the network of stakeholders; and
(e) Keep policies fo ensure honest and ethical fundraising.




C D}
NOMINATION
SUBCOMMITTEE

— >
STAFF
SUBCOMMITTEE

CHAIRMAN - Dr Janice Wong CHAIRMAN - Ms Tan Yee Deng
MEMBERS - A/Prof Ong Hian Tat MEMBERS - Dr Janice Wong
- Dr Satyaki Sengupta - Ms Yvonne Chan
- Mr Mervyn Sirisena, Pam - Ms Foo Siew Fong, pam
STAFF IN - Execfive Director ~ H Salim Bin Abdul Kodr,
ATTENDANCE - Assistant Admin Manager
STAFF IN - Executive Director
The role of the Nomination subcommittee is fo provide the ATTENDANCE -HR Monoger .
Board with strategic direction and leadership on matters - Senior HR Execuiive

relafing fo appointments.

The Nomination subcommittee meets to discuss and make
recommendations to the Board before the Annual General
Meeting (AGM).

The Nomination subcommittee sets ouf fo:

(a) Review the composition of the Board annually
fo ensure that the Board has an appropriate balance
of independent Board members and fo ensure an
appropriate balance of expertise, skills, atiributes and
ability among the Board members;

(b) Identify, invife and groom potenfial Board member
candidates fo serve as Board members;

(c) Nominate Individuals to be elected as members of
the Board;

(d) Nominate Board members for election as Office Bearers;
(e) Take the lead in succession planning; and
(M) Design and oversee a process of Board Orientation.

The role of the Staff subcommittee is fo provide strategic
direction and leadership to appoint, confirm, emplace on
permanent or part-time establishment, promote, transfer
and exercise disciplinary confrol over the employees
of CPAS.

The Staff subcommittee sefs out to actively inifiate, help
develop, monitor and evaluate sfrategic Human Resource
(HR) actions and policies that will enhance and embed
CPAS’ repufation as an employer, and enable CPAS fo
recruif, develop, engage and retain the best staff.
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C )

PROGRAMMES
SUBCOMMITTEE

CHAIRMAN - A/Prof Ong Hian Tat
MEMBERS - Dr Satyaki Sengupta

- Dr Yoong Siew Lee

- Dr Bicky Bhangu

- Mr Remy Choo
STAFF IN - Executive Director
ATTENDANCE | - CPAS School Principal

- EIPIC Principal

- Adult Services Manager

- Head of Occupational
Therapy Department

- Head of Physiotherapy Depariment

- Head of Psychology
Department

- Head of Social Work
Department

- Head of Speech & Language
Pathology Department

The role of the Programmes subcommittee is fo provide
strategic direction and leadership fo ensure that good
practices are observed in meeting the welfare of all
students/clients; and fo the development of CPAS as
a regional centre for Excellent Rehab therapy service,
educational development and advocacy.

The Programmes subcommittee sets out to:

(a) Review and monitor progress on students/client matters
(e.g. therapy for clients);

(b) Review and endorse exceptional referrals for admission,
fransfer and/or discharge of students/clients for therapy
services, early infervention, special school education
and adult services;

(c) Review and endorse recommendations made in relation
fo the planning and development of projects and resources;

(d) Review and endorse budget and/or financial matters in
relation fo programmes and clients;

(e) Review and endorse changes fo policies and
procedures in accordance with the advice/changes
from Ministry of Social and Family Development (MSF)
and National Council of Social Service (NCSS);

(f) Collaborate with  healthcare  professionals  and
government agencies in identifying quality services and
updated fechnology;

(@) Incorporate advanced fechnology into the development
of therapy oufcome measures, practice guidelines,
quality service indicators of therapy-related practices
and the implementation of effective fechniques; and

(h) Oversee the growth and development of Rehab
professionals  toward research advocacy and
information technology.

Financial Year 2020/21 | Annual Report

INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY
(IT) WORKGROUP

ADVISOR - Mrs Chng-Wong Yin
STAFF IN - Executive Director
ATTENDANCE - Assistant Manager, IT

A workgroup of Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore (CPAS) is
formalised to oversee specific areas of govemance and operations.

Through the process, the workgroup submits proposal
and shortlist recommendations to the Board for approvals.
The Board may delegate aspects of decision-making fo a
workgroup. Any decision made by a workgroup remains the
responsibility of the Board. The Board has the final decision.

The workgroup shall ensure proper monitoring.

Information Technology (IT) workgroup is an ad-hoc
working committee. The [T Workgroup oversees and
provides strafegic direction and leadership to ensure
effective use of IT resources and systems to meet the
organisation’s needs.

The IT workgroup sets out to:

(a) Provide support, guidance and advice for technology-
related projects and initiatives;

(b) Assist in consultancy by confributing reliable
information fo aid and recommend efficient solufions
for both hardware and software matters;

(c) Enhance stability in the technology infrastructure,
encourage uniformity and consistency across platforms,
increasing efficiency and productivity throughout the
organisation;

(d) Make recommendations fo the Board on proposed [T
projects based on priorities and resource requirements; and

(e) Review, monitor progress and report updates of ongoing
projects at regular intervals.

Representatives from respective departments are appointed
fo co-ordinate, update and present IT-related suggestions
fo the workgroup.

CPAS REPRESENTATIVES

EXTERNAL AGENCIES

Singapore Disability Sports
Council (SDSC)

The Children’s
Charities Association of
Singapore(CCA)

National Council of Social
Service (NCSS)

- Mrs Koh-Lim Ai Lay

- Mr Mervyn Sirisena, v
- Ms Tan Yee Deng

- A/Prof Kevin Lim, BBM, PBM
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ADVANCED TIE

R | GOVERNANCE EVALUATION CHECKLISTS

S/N DESCRIPTION CODE RESPONSE
ID (DROP LIST)
1 Induction and orientation are provided fo incoming Board members on joining 1.1.2 | & Complied
the Board. () Not Complied
Are there Board members holding staff' appointments? ) Yes
(Skip items 2 and 3 if “No”) ¢/ No
2 | Staff' does net chair the Board and does not comprise more than one-third of 1.1.3 | ©) Complied
the Board. ) Not Complied
3 There are written job descriptions for their executive functions and operational 1.1.5 | ) Complied
duties which are distinct from their Board roles. () Not Complied
4 There is a maximum limit of four consecutive years for the Treasurer 117 & Complied
position (or equivalent, e.g. Finance Committee Chairman or person on Board ) Not Complied
responsible for overseeing the finances of the charity).
Should the charity not have an appointed Board member, it will be taken that the
Chairman oversees the finances.
5 | All Board members submit themselves for re-nomination and reappointment, 1.1.8 | & Complied
at least once every three years. () Not Complied
6 | The Board conducts regular self-evaluation fo assess its performance and 1.1.12 | & Complied
effectiveness once per ferm or every three years, whichever is shorter. () Not Complied
Are there Board member(s) who have served for more than  Yes
10 consecutive years? (Skip item 7 if “No™) O No
7 | The charity discloses in its annual report the reasons for retaining Board 1.1.13 | & Complied
member(s) who have served for more than 10 consecutive years. ) Not Complied
8 There are documented terms of reference for the Board and each of its Board 121 |& Complied
committees. () Not Complied
9 | There are documented procedures for Board members and staff' to declare 2.1 & Complied
actual or potential conflicts of interest fo the Board af the earliest opportunity. ) Not Complied
10 | Board members do not vote or participate in decision-making on matters 2.4 | & Complied
where they have a conflict of inferest. () Not Complied
11 | The Board periodically reviews and approves the strategic plan for the charity | 3.2.2 | & Complied
fo ensure that the activities are in line with ifs objectives. ) Not Complied
12 | There is a documented plan fo develop the capacity and capability of the 3.2.4 | &/ Complied
charity and the Board monitors the progress of this plan. () Not Complied
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13 | The Board approves documented human resource policies for staff' 5.1 & Complied
() Not Complied
14 | There is a documented Code of Conduct for Board members, staff' and 5.3 v Complied
volunteers? (where applicable) which is approved by the Board. (O Not Complied
15 | There are processes for regular supervision, appraisal and professional 55 | & Complied
development of staff! (> Not Complied
Are there volunteers? serving in the charity? v Yes
(Skip item 16 if “No™) ) No
16 | There are volunteer management policies in place for volunteers?. 5.7 & Complied
(O Not Complied
17 | There is a documented policy to seek Board’s approval for any loans, 611 & Complied
donations, grants or financial assistance provided by the charity which are not () Not Complied
part of its core charitable programmes.
18 | The Board ensures internal controls for financial matters in key areas are in 6.1.2 | & Complied
place with documented procedures. ) Notf Complied
19 | The Board ensures reviews on the charity’s infernal confrols, processes, key 6.1.3 | ¢ Complied
programmes and events are regularly conducted. ) Not Complied
20 | The Board ensures that there is a process fo identify, regularly monitor and 6.1.4 | & Complied
review the charity’s key risks. (O Not Complied
21 | The Board approves an annual budget for the charity’s plans and regularly 6.2.1 | & Complied
monitors its expenditure. () Not Complied
Does the charity invest its reserves, including fixed deposits?  Yes
(Skip item 22 if “No”) ) No
22 | The charity has a documented investment policy approved by the Board. 6.4.3 | & Complied
() Not Complied
Did the charity receive cash donations (solicited or  Yes
unsolicited) during the year? (Skip item 23 if “No”) > No
23 | All collections received (solicited or unsolicited) are properly accounted for 7.2.2 | & Complied
and promptly deposited by the charity. () Not Complied
Did the charity receive donations-in-kind during the year?  Yes
(Skip item 24 if “No”) ) No
24 | All donations-in-kind received are properly recorded and accounted for 723 VCompIied
by the charity. () Not Complied
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25 | The charity discloses in its annual report: 82 |« Complied
i) Number of Board meetings in the year; and () Not Complied
i) Individual Board member’s atfendance.
Are Board members remunerated for their Board services? Yes
(Skip items 26 and 27 if “No”)
26 | No Board member is involved in sefting his or her own remuneration. 22 )
(O Not Complied
27 | The charity discloses the exact remuneration and benefits received by each 8.3 (O Complied
Board member in its annual report. (' Not Complied
OR
The charity discloses that no Board members are remunerated.
Does the charity employ paid staff? V Yes
(Skip items 28, 29 and 30 if “No”) O No
28 | No staff' is involved in sefting his or her own remuneration. 22 & Complied
() Not Complied
29 | The charity discloses in its annual report: 84 |« Complied
i) The tofal annual remuneration (including any remuneration received in its () Not Complied
subsidiaries), for each of its three highest paid staff', who each receives
remuneration exceeding $100,000, in bands of $100,000; and
i) If any of the three highest paid staff' also serves on the Board of the charity.
OR
The charity discloses that none of its staff' receives more than $100,000 in
annual remuneration each.
30 | The charity discloses the number of paid sfaff' who are close members of 8.4 « Complied
the family® of the Executive Head or Board Members, who each receives () Not Complied
remuneration exceeding $50,000 during the year, in bands of $100,000.
OR
The charity discloses that there is ne paid staff' who are close members of
the family® of the Executive Head or Board Member, who receives more than
$50,000 during the year.
31 The charity has a documented communication policy on the release of 9.2 v Complied
information about the charity and its activifies across all media plafforms. (0 Not Complied

1. Staff: Paid or unpaid individuals who are involved in the day-fo-day operations of the charity, e.g. an Executive Director or
Administrative personnel.

2. Volunteer: Persons who willingly give up fime for charitable purposes, without expectation of any remuneration.
For volunteers who are involved in the day-to-day operations of the charity, they should also abide by the best practices set out
in the Code applicable fo ‘staff’.

3. Close members of the family: Those family members who may be expected fo influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the charity. In most cases, they would include:

e That person’s children and spouse;
e Children of that person’s spouse; and
¢ Dependants of that person or that person’s spouse.
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DECLARATION

Name Latha Kutty

Email latha_kutty@cpas.org.sg

Contact Office: 66855608 Mobile
Designation Executive Director

~ | declare that my charity’s/IPC’s governing Board has approved this Governance Evaluation Checklist and authorised me
fo submit on its behalf.

All information given by me in this checklist submission is true fo the best of my knowledge and i have not wifully
suppressed any material fact.

The full responsibility for providing accurate and updated checklust information will rest with my charity’s/IPC’s governing
Board.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the members of the Executive Committee of Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore

(the "Assodiation”),

(a) the financial of the Association as set out on pages 5 to 27 are drawn up in accordance
with the provision of the Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the “Societies Act”), the Charities Act,
Chapter 37 and other relevant regulations (the “Charities Act and Regul ") and F

Reporting Standards In Singapore so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the finandal position
of the Association as at March 31, 2021, and the financial performance, changes in funds and cash
flows of the Association for the financial year then ended;

(b) the use of donation moneys Is in accordance with the objectives of the Association as required under
Regulation 11 of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations;

(c) the Association has complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 of the Charities (Institutions of
a Public Character) Regulations;

{d) the accounting and other records required to be kept by the Assodation have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Societies Regulations enacted under the Socleties Act, the
Charities Act and Regulations;

{e) the fund-raising appeals held during the period September 2020 have been carried out in accordance
with Regulation & of the Societles Regulations issued under the Societies Act and proper accounts and
other records have been kept of the fund-raising appeals; and

() at the date of this there are ble g ds to believe that the Association will be able
to pay its debts when they fall due.

ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr Sallim Bin Kadir, BEM, PBM, JP
Honorary Treasurer

September 20, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Cerebral Palsy Alllance Singapore (the “Association™), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes |n funds and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 5 to 27.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the “Sodieties Act”), the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and other
relevant regulations (the “Charities Act and Regulations™) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapare
("FRSs™) so as to present fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of the Association as at
March 31, 2021 and of the financial performance, changes in funds and cash flows of the Association for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("S5As”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finandial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the Accounting
and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities ("ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other athical responsibilities in accordance
with these reguirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management Is respansible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statement by the
Executive Committee set out on page 1.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained In the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Diicecie & Taacke 19 (Unaue Ercey o, TOSLLATE Uk i an sccountng krted kabity artmership rpiliened £ Sgasere uAaer th Limioed Laidty Parmnershies Ac ihapte 1634)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTIANCE SINGAPORE

ibilities of gement and Executive Committee for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the provisions of the Socleties Act, the Charities Act and Regulations and FRSs, and for
devising and maintaining a sy of aco g controls sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions
are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements and to maintain accountabllity of assets.

In preparing the financial stats ts, manag Is responsible for g the Assoclation's ability to
continue as a going cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the geing
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Executive Committee |s responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with S5As will always detect a material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional Judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulung fmrn fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, issi misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an under ding of | trol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association’s internal control.

(¢} Evaluate the approp of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report Lo the related disclosures In the financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conciusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Assoclation to cease to continue
as a going concemn.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Executive Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion:

(a) the accounting and other records required to be kept by the Association have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Societies Regulations eanacted under the Societies Act, the
Charities Act and Regulations; and

(b) the fund-raising appeals held during the period September 2020 have been carried out in accordance
with Regulation 6 of the Societies Regulations Issued under the Societies Act and proper accounts and
other records have been kept of the fund-raising appeals.

During the course of our audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that during the
year:

(a) the Association has not used the donation moneys in accordance with its objectives as required under
Regulation 11 of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations; and

(b) the Association has not complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 of the Charities (Institutions
of a Public Character) Regulations.

Febite 4 Tornks or—>
Public Accountants and

Charterad Accountants

Singapore

September 20, 2021
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
March 31, 2021

ACCUMULATED FUNDS
SPECIFIC FUNDS
PROGRAMME DEVELOPMENT FUND

REPRESENTED BY:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and eguipmant
Right-of-use asset

CURRENT ASSETS
Due from Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singspore Scheol ("School™)
Recsivables, prapayments and deposits
Job support scheme grant receivables
Cash and cash eguivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accrusd expenses
Due to National Counell of Social Sarvice ("NCSS") /
SG Enable {"SGE"
Leasa liabilities
Deferred job support scheme grant income

NET CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT LIABILIES

Deferred capital donations
Leasa liabilities

NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS OF TRUST FUNDS

Sea accompanying notes to financial statements.

Note

~ o

o

5
10

L1

12

13
14

15

2021 2020
5 s

11,062,601 8,418,652
7,051,651 7,492,203
271,432 271,432
16,386,604 16,182,377
9,556,528 8,634,140
2,921,126 3,700,093
12,477,654 12,334,233
554,202 329,932
132,337 219,775
154,888 698,506
18,924,289 17,081,414
19,765,716 18,329,627
825,056 816,651
772,387 819,358
772,641 757,126
263,468 698,506
2,633,552 3,091,641
17,132,164 15,237,986
9,015,766 8,409,833
2,207,368 2,980,009

11,223,134 11,389,842

18386684 16,182,377

144,782

117,641
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

March 31, 2021
2021 2020
General  Specific General  Specific
Dok Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Tatal
$ § 3 H s 5
INCOME:
Grants and supplernentary funding
from Minsstry of Social and Family
("MSF™) and its affifiaces
- Goodwill Rehabiitaton &
Oecupational Waorkshop
{"GROW") 364,960 - 364,960 176,350 - 376,350
= Eauly Intervention {"EI™) 914,622 - f14,622 849,614 - B43 624
- Day Activity Centre ("DACT) 176,168 - 176,168 180,333 - 180,323
- Headquarter - - - 529,387 - 529,387
= Therapy rehabilitation programme 11818 - 233,818 219,550 - 229,950
- Eeyond boundanies club 100,57 - 100,574 99,131 - 99,131
= Community $ilver trust funds - F27,704 T304 - 990,775 590,775
- Care and share funds - 45,970 45,370 = 553,304 653,304
= GROW - from MSF 426,182 = 426,182 IB6ETS - 386,675
- EI - trom MSF 3,038,683 - 3,038,681 3,056,677 - 3056577
= DAC = from MSF 790,587 - 790,587 652,943 . 552,943
- Temporary Occupation License
"TOL") lees 104,945 - 104,546 157.418 - 157,418
Grants from Tote Board
- Smptember - - . 19,201 - 49,201
- Charity Dinner & othar events 65812 - 65,812 95,057 = 95,057
VWEs-charites capability fund training
Qrants 159,841 - 159,841 35585 - 35,685
Miscellaneous grants 79,78% - 79,789 - -
Central Marketing Services ("CMS")
sales 39,387 - 39,387 57881 - 57,881
Cate oroject sales 39929 . 39,529 54,309 * 54,309
Sales of work by GROW trainees 44133 - 44 132 58,571 - 38,571
GROW IT & office services 788 - 7E8 = = =
Alurnni sales 8,018 - 8,018 353 - 353
Amortisation of deferred capital
donations 15 784661 - 784,661 763,898 - 763,898
Specific donations - 1,085201 1,085,201 - 663,723 563,723
Unrestricted donations 1,315,348 - 1,316,348 544,501 - Ea4.501
Therapy treatment fees 6,430 . 6,430 18,684 - 18,684
£1 programme fess 349,240 - 343 240 407,375 - 407,375
DAL programmme fees 161,71% - 161,715 155,610 - 155,610
Membership fees 110 - 110 300 - 300
Other inceme
- Professionzl fees for services
rencered w School 1,556,000 - 1,556,000 1613078 - 161307
- FProfessionzl fees for services
randered to othars 5,553 - 95,553 134,620 - 134,620
= Training and consultancy fees 73902 = 73,902 148,749 = 146,749
< Wage credit scheme 2,865,215 = 2,268,215 183,307 . 183,307
- Recharge of TOL fees to School 443,707 - 445 702 668,553 - ©68,553
= Rantal rebates 275,333 - 275,323 - - -
- Interest income on bank deposits 78,290 G 79,290 187,333 = 187,333
= SGE for transport subsidies 388,029 - 383,039 332,312 - ;N3
« Smptember income = - = 144,347 = 144,347
Charity Dinner income 222,28% . 242,285 260,493 . 280,493
- Caregivers training income 3,090 - 3,090 2,250 - 2,250

Pragrmatic Organisation Dynarmic

Display {*FODD") training

income - - - 41,840 - 41,940
Dyslexia Action Literacy

Programme ("DALP) training

income - - - 35,055 - 35,055
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
ENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (cont'd)

STATEM
March 31, 2021

- PECT supervision Income
- Internal sorvices rendered
= Sundry income

Total income

EXPENDITURE:
Manpower and related costs
= Salaries and related expenses
- Medical, insurance and welfare
exzenses

= Training end related expenses
General and administrative expenses
Communicabions
Insurance
Audit feas
Transport charges
- Supplies and materials
Adverusement expenses
Sank charges
Depreciation of groperty and

equipment
Dupreciation of right-ol-use
asset

Replacament of eguipment
scellanecus expenses
Corporate gifts
Equipment written off
- School fees written off
Upkesp and ubilities
= Maintenance
= Wtilities
= Motor vehicle expenses
Frogramme/Froject expenses
= GROW sxpenses
CMS expenses
Cafe project expenses
GROW IT & office services
Meal expenses
Allowances to trainees
SGF transport subsidies
Event expenses
Public education/campaigns
= Bayond boundaras club
activity expenses
Utilisation of specific funds
Utilisation of unrestricted donations
Steptember expenses
Charity Dinner expenses
Tote Board - Sieptember/Charty
Dinngr
C ity silver trust
FOLD traming expenses
DALP raining expenses
PECT supervision experises
Interest on lease liabilibes
Others
Total expend ture

Operating surplus (deficit),
representil

ng total
comprehansive income (loss)
for the year

2021 2020
General Specific General Specific
Note _Fl_q|_d Funed TOEI F-l_d Fln;u_i ‘I'bl._l! o
5 s £
100,502 - 100,508 - - -
4,373 - 4,372 4,248 - 4,248
28 961 - 28,561 36527 - 36,927

P o S Lo AR NI . 44
14,744,380 1 855875 1£604,355 12,551,126 2307802 14,858,928

17 8,548,699

121,636
174,824

15,209
30,048

206,291
128,495
13,336

£2,625
42,208
29,961
33
4,514
2,278
88,039

32,340
11,413
7,101
22,!Sé
111,830
43,206

58,608
68,845
703

N

BEREER R

2,300,517

0,548,639

121,636
174,824

15,229
a0,

47,423
2,511
102,082

6,953
201,651

778,957
18,216
115,424
427
282

106,251

4,514
278
388,079
32,240
11,419
2,300,517
7,101
22,358
111,830
43,206

58,608
60,845
703

8,735,650

144,516
234,653

22,544
29,266

12,529
21,746

33,449
28,541

21,953
84,047
3,58

- B735550

- 144,516
- 234553

22,544

- 29,166
. 43167
14 5:543
3685

- 3570

- 785881

- 225,392
- 150,231
- 14,379

55,017
42,785
42,501
4,457
332,313
160

- 21,327

12,529
2,725,601

21,746
- 33,449
- 28,541
- 108,200
. 32,104
- 15,419
21853

84,047
2,98

2,644 945

Sea accompanying notes to financial statements

440,642

2,204,307

226,577

417,879) 191,302
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended March 31, 2021

2021 2020
$ B
‘Operating activities
Operating surphus (deficit) 2,204,307 (191,302)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment 901,651 795,681
Dapraciation of right-of-use asset 778,967 778,967
Amortisation of deferred capital donations (784,661) (763,898)
Property and equipment written off 252 Sd4
Grants from MSF (4,255,452)  [4,096,295)
Interast income (78,290) (187,333)
Interast expenses 68,845 84,047
Operating cash flows befere movements in working capital (1,164,381) (3,579,589)
Cue from School (224,270) 115,564
Due to NCSS / SGE (266,884) (219,913)
Receivablas, prepayments and deposits 25,723 7,858
Othar payables and accrued expanses 8,405 35475
Job suppart scheme grart receivabls 108 580 -
Cash used in oparations (1,512,827)  (3,640,505)
Interest recelved 140,005 181,156
Irtarest paid (68,845) (84,047}
Met cash used in operating activities (1,441 667] (3,543 396]
Investing activity
Purchase of proparty and eguipment, represanting
net cash used in investing activity (Note A) (433.697) (219,841)
Financing activities
Capital grant received from MSF 4,255,452 4,096,295
Funding received from NCSS / SGE 219,913 478,608
Repayments of lease lizbilites (757,126) (741,925)
Net cash from financing activities 3,718,239 3,832,978
Nat increaase in cash and cash squivalants 1,842,875 69,741
Cash and cash equivalents at baginning of year 16,888,430 16,818,689
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 11) 18,731,305 16,888,430

e

Note A

During the ysar, tha Assaciation acquired proparty and aguipment of which §1,390,594 (2020 : $1,139,575)
is funded through deferred capital conations.

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

1 GENERAL

Tha Assocation (Charity Registration No. 000732 and Societies Registreticn No, 0283/1557WEL) was
formed in 1960 under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 to raise funds and to develop and maintain
welfare and sducational services for paople with cerebral palsy in Singapore. The Association Is
dormniciled in Singapore with its reglstered office and principal place of oparation at 65 Pasir Ris Drive 1,
Cerebral Palsy Centre, Singapore 518529,

The Association and the School are funded by donations from the general public and supported by
MSF, Ministry of Education ("MOE") and their affiliates. The programs are generally spiit up by age
group, whare programs for students aged 7 to 18 years ara run by the School, while all other programs
are run by the Association. The financial statements of tha Association should be read in conjunction
with the Scheol as the results of the School are in a separate sat of financial statements.

The financial statements are expressed in Singapore dollars, which is the functional currency of the
Association.

The financial statements of the Assoclation for the year ended March 31, 2021 were authcnsed for
issum by the Exscutive Committes on Septermber 20, 2021,

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
historical cost basis, sxcept as disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in
accordanca with the provisions of the Socicties Act, tha Charities Act and Regulations and Financial
Reporting Stardards in Singapora ("FRSs").

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the corsideration given in exchange for goods
and services,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sall an asset or paid to transfar a liability in an orderdy
transaction betwean markat participants at the measurement date, regardless of whather that price
is directly cbsarvable or estimated using another vaiuation technique, In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Association takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
which market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or lLizbility at the
measuremert date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of
FRS 116 Leases, and measuramants that have some similanties to fair value but are not fair value,
such as value in use in FRS 36 Impairment of dssets.

2.2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - [n the current financial year, the Assoclation has
adopted all the new and revised FRSs and Interpretations of FRS [“INT FRS") that are relevent to its
operations. The adoption of thesa new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs does not result in changes to the
Association’s accounting policies and has no material effect on the amounts reported for the current
o prior years.

2.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Finanaal assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the statement
of financial position when the Association becomes a party tc the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

10
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

Financial assats and financial liabilities are Initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly aitributable to the acquisition or issue of financial asssts and financial liabilities are added te
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropnate, on initial
racognition.

2.3.1Financial assets
ification of fi ial

Debt instruments mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, receivables, deposits and job support
schame grant receivables that meet the following conditions and are subsaguently measured at
amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business meodel whose objective is to hold financial assets in
orcer to collect contractual cash flows, and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of prindpal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The sffactive interest method 15 a8 methed of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating Interest incoma over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) exciuding expected credit lossas, through the expectad life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter pariod, to the gross carrying amount of the dabt
instrumeant on initial recognition,

The amertised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for
any loss allowanca. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of & financial asset is the amortised
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interast is recognised using the effective interest mathod for debt instruments measured subssguently
at amoitised cost, axcept for short-term balances whan tha effect of discounting s immatearial.

Impairment of financial assats

The Association recognises a loss allowance for expected cradit losses ("ECL") on other recaivables.
The amount of expectad credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk sirce iritial recognition of the respective financial instrumant.

Far all financial instruments, the Association recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant
increase in oredit risk since initial recognition, If, on the othar hand, the credt risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since inibal recognition, the Association measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. The assessment of
whethar lifetime ECL should be recognised is based cn significant increases in tha likelinocd or rigk of
a default oocurnng since initial recognition nstead of on evidence of a financial asset being
credt-impaired at tha reporting date or an actual default occurming.

11
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

Sigrificant increase in credit pisk

In essessing whether the credit risk on & finanaal instrumeant has increased significantly since initial
recagnition, the Association compares the risk of a default dcourring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Association considers historical loss rates for each
category of cebtors and adjusts to reflact current and forward-locking information that is available
without undue cost or effart,

If credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition or if the credit quality of the
financial instruments improves such that thers is no longer 2 significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Definition of defaull

The Association considers that default has occurred when information daveloped internaily or obtained
from extamal sources Inclcates that the debtor is unlikely to pay Its creditors, including the
Association, in full without recourse by the Association to actions such as realising security held
{if any).

Credit-impaired financal assets

A financial assat is credit-smpairad when one or more events that have a datrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurrad,

Virite-off policy

The Association writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty
is in savera financial difficulty and there s Mo realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placad undar liquidation ar has sntersd into bankruptey proceadings, Financial assets writtan
off may stlll be subject to enforcemeant activities under the Association's recovery procedures, takdng
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

For financal assets, the expectad credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Assocation in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Association expects to receive, discounted art the original effective interest rate.

If the Association has measured the |oss allowance for a financial instrument 2t an amount aquai to
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but detarmines at the current reparting date that the

conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Assoziation measures the foss allowanca at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date.

12
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

nition of fin |

The Association derecognises a financial asset on'y when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or it transfers the financial assst and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Associatian neither transfars nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Association
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Association retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Association continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceads recaived.

2.3.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Association are dassified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered inte and the definitions of a financial liability.

Cther payablas, accrued expenses, amount due to NCSS [/ SGE and deferred job support scheme grant
incoma ara initially recognised at fair value and are subseguently measured at amortised cost, using

the sffective interest method, except for short-term payables when the effect of discounting is
immatanal.

. ——
The Association darecognises financial liabilities whan, and only when, the Assodation’s cbligations
are discharged, canceiled or expired.

2.4 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - Proparty and equipment are carmied at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impalnment loss.

Property and equipment costing $1,000 or less are writtan off in the year of acquisition.

Cepreciation of property and equipment is charged on a straight-line methed over the expected useful
lives of the assets concernad. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are:

Leasehold bullding - 3.3%
Furniture and equipment - 15%
Ambulance - 10%
Computers & 50%
Office equipment - 15%
Renovations - 10%

The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of sach reporting period,
with the sffect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prespective basis.

The gain or less arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined
as tha diffarence batwean the sales proceads and the camrying amounts of the asset and |s recognised
in income or expenditure.

Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements.

13
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

2.5 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINAMNCIAL ASSETS - At the end of each raporting period, the Association
reviews the carrying amounts of its non-finandial assats to determine whether there is any indication
that these assats have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset (s ectimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not pessible to sstimate the recoverable ameunt of an individual 2sset, the Association
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-genarating unit to which the asset belongs.

Racoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assassing value
in usa, the estimated future cash flows ame discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessmants of the tme value of monay and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimated futurs cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) Is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in income or expanditure.

Where an impairmant loss subsequently revarsas, the carrying amount of the assat {cash-genarating
unit) is Increasad to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not excead the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in pior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in incoma or expenditure.

2.6 PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the Association has a present obligation (legal or
canstructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Association will be required to settle
the cbligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of tha obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision 1s the best estmate of the consideration required to settle the
presant obligation at tha end of the reporting perod, taking into account the nsks and uncertainties
surrcunding the chligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the prasent obligation, its carrying amount is the present valus of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic hanefits required to settle a provision are axpected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be maasured raliably.

2.7 DEFERRED CAPITAL DOMNATIONS - Conations for the acquisition of property and equipment are taken
to the Deferred Capital Donations Account and recognisad as income over the useful lives of the assets
to match the depreciation of the assets purchased with the related donations. Donations received for
spacific purposes are accounted on a cash basis, This comprises government grants and contributions
received from doners to construct, furmish and equip the Association.

7.8.1 LEASES (AS LESSEE) - The Association assessas whethar a contract (s or contains a laase, at inception
of the contract. Tha Association recognisas a right-of-use asset and a corresponding leasa liability with
respect to all lease arrangaments in which it is the lessee, excapt for short-term leases (defined as
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Association recogrises the lease payments as an operating expenss on a stralght-line basis over the
term of the lease unless ancther systematic basis s more reprasentative of the tme patterm in which
econamic banefits from the leased assets am consumad,

The lease liability s initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted by using the rate impliat in the lease. If this rate cannot be
readily determinad, the Assaciation uses the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lessee.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

The lease |[ability is presented as a separate [ine In the statement of financial position,

The lease labillty is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liabiity (using tha effective intarest mathod) and by reducing the carrying amount to refiect
the lease paymants made.

The Association remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
nght-of-use asset) whenever:

. The lease term has changed or thera is a change in the assessment of exerdse of an extension
option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a ravised discount rate; or

. A lease contract is medified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease,
in which case the lease liability is remeasured by distounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate.

The nght-of-usa asset comprise the initial measurement of the comesponding lease Hability, lease
paymants made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs, They ame
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use asset are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and usefd Ife of the
urderlying asset. The deprecistion starts al the commencement date of the lease.

Leasehold land - 17.4%

The night-of-use asset are presented as a separate line in the statemant of financial position.

The Association applies FRS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts
for any idantified impairment loss as describad above.

2.8.2 LEASES (AS LESSOR) - Rental income from operating leasas is racegnisad on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs Incurred (n negotisting and arranging an cperating
laase are added to the camrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straght-line basis
over the laasa term.

2.9 TRUST FUNDS - Monies received for trust funds are credited directly to the respective trust funds’
financial statements. Income and expenditure, assets and liabilites of trust funds are segregated from
that of the Association.

2.10 ACCUMULATED FUNDS - The accumuiated funds are restnicted for the operations of the respective
programmes only, for the benefit of its intended dients. [n keeping with the fundars’/donors’ intent
for the use of the monies, the funds will not be transferred out of the programme fer other purposes.

2.11 SPECIFIC FUNDS - Tha funds comprisa tha cumulativa operating surplus or daficit ansing from the
speafic income and expenditura account.

15
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

Bulldng Improvemeant Fund
The buildng improvement fund weas establistved in 1989 for renovation, upgrading and maintaining
the building of the Assaciation,

Furniture and i nt Fund

In 2002, the School Facilities Fund, Office Equipmeant Fund and Special Project Fund were combined
to form the Fumiture and Equipment Fund. This fund is used for the purchase of furniture and
equipment for the Assodaton.

GROW Fund
This fund was established in 1984, [ncome derived from the workshop projects and cash donations

for the workshop are channelled to this fund. The fund is used for the general walfare of workshop
trainees.

RAC Fung

This fund is used to help the financial needy clients under the Day Activity Centre ("DACY) to subsidise
their transportation feas, programme fees, purchase of assistive rehabilitative aids and welfars needs.

El Fund

This fund s usaed 1 help the financal needy children under the Early Intervention (“El") to subsidise
their fees, purchase of assistive rehabilitative aics and weifare needs.

Staff Training and Weifare Fund

This fund is dezignated for staff training which is one of tha key compenants for upgrading of skills to
remain relavant, and staff welfare which promotes staff bonding and provides recagnition through lang
sarvice awards and aporeaation.

Project Fund

This fund helps to promote the awareness and the image of the Association in genera, including public
education and awarensss programmes such as the newsletter of the Association, information
brodhures about the spedfic services the Assodation provides and awards for the recognition and
appreciation of voluntears.

Viglfare Fund
This fund is used with the objectives of subsidising needy children and workshep trainees for the
purchase of medical equipment, rehabiltation and assistive aids, including reimbursemant of medical

and dental fees inclusive of the purchase of medicine and other expanses for the general welfars of
neady clients
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

Aggigdive Technolegy Clinic Fund

This fund is used for the purpese of setting up an assistive technology clinic, as well as to assist the
financially needy clients to purchase assistive eguipmant.

Included in the Assistive Technology Clinic Fund was the President Challenge 2019 fund of
$33,000 of which $27,402 was utlised for the purchase of eys-gaze devices dunng the financial
year ended March 31, 2021,

Commuini lyer Fund

This fund is used to help encourage donations and provide additional resources for service providers
in the intermediate and long term care sector, It provides a dollar-for-dollar match for all donations
receved under the GROW and DAC programmes.

Care and Share Fung

This fund helps to build the capabilities and capacities of the social service sector and support social

sarvices to meet rising needs. It provides a dollar-for-doliar match for all donations received, excluding
donations which are already subjected to dollar matches under other schemas.

7.12 PROGRAMME DEVELOPMENT FUND - Programmes raceiving NCSS's / SGE's grant under a “Par Capita™
funding policy are allowed to start a Programme Development Fund, This represents the portion of
income retained by the Association and 1s computed based on 50% of unrestrcted donations, or 5%
of total operating expenditure whichever is lower.

2.13 RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE - The Association recognises incoma when it transfars
control of a product or service to @ customer.

LCash donations
Cash denations are recognised en a cash basis,

Grants from MSF, NCSS / SGE and Tote Board

Grants receved from MSF, NCSS / SGE and Tote Board are recognised on an accruzl basis. Any surplus
or deficit of funding will be accounted for aftar it is finalised with the relevant authonties.

Sale of goods

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and exdudes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Association recognises revenue when It transfers
control of the goods to a customer.

Rendering of services
Revenue from rendaring of services are recognised when the sarvices are provided.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

Erogramme feos

Programme feas ara recognised whan the seryices are rendered,

Iemporary pcoupation license fees

Temporary occupation license fees are recognised as rental incorme on an accrual basis \n the panod
to which it relates.

Interest incomg

Interast income is accrued on a tima basis, by refarence to the principal cutstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicatle.

Expenditure

Expanditure is accounted for on the accrual basis.

2.14 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged
as en expense when employees have rendered Lhe service entitling them to the contributions.
Paymente made ta state-managed retirement benefit schemes, such as tha Singapore Central
Provident Fund, ara dealt with as payments to defined contribution plans where the Association's
obligations under the plans are equivalent to thosa ansing in a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan.

2.15 BMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT Emn?liaoJee antitiements to annual leave are recognised when thay
acciue to employess. A provision is & for the estimated lability for annuel leave as a result of
sarvices rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting pericd.

2.16 RESERVES POLICY - The Association shall at all tmes hold in its reserve funds liquidity equal or mare
than 6 months projected recurrent operating expenses from Accumulated Fund, and 12 months
projected expenditure from Specific Fund,

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UMNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Assaciation’s accounting policies, which are described In Note 2, management
Is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The sstimates and associzted
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considersd to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisicns to accounting
estimates are recogrised in the panod in winch the estimate s revised if the revision affects only that
period, orin the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current 2nd future
periods,
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

Critical judgements in applying the Association’s accounting policies

Management is nat aware of any critical judgements that wou'd have significant effect on the amounts
recognisad in the finarcial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The &ssociation does not have any key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting

period that have a significant risk of causing @ materal adjustmant to the camrying amounts of assets
and labilities within the next finarcal year.

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISK ANC CAPITAL MAMAGEMENT

a)
The following table sats out the finandal instruments as at the end of tha reporting period:
2021 2020
5 3
Financial assets
At amortised cost 19,570,385 17,572,150
Financial liabilities
At zmortised cost 1,597,443 1,636,008
Leasa liabilities 2,980,009 3,737,135
b)

Tha Association has limted exposure to financial risks. There has been no change to the
Association’s exposure to the financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures
thess nske,

The Assoc|ation ks primarily funded via grants and donations and it attempts o ensure sufficlent
ligudity at all times through efficent cash management. It places its cash with creditworthy
financial institutions. The Association was exposed to & concentration of credit risk with
respact to amounts due from the School and government agencies, which represented 92%
(2020 : 89%) of total receivables at the end of the reporting period. There are no foreign
currency transactions,

Changes in interest mtes do not have a material Impact an the Asscciation as its interest-bearing
asset only relates to fixed deposits and its interest bearing liability only relates to lease liabilities.
Further details of fixed deposits and lease liabilities are disclosed in Notes 11 and 14.

All ather financial |iabilities are non-|nteras: baaring and repayabia on damand or due within one
year from the end of the reporting pericd.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

The carrying values of financlal assets and financial liabilities reported in tha statemaent of
financial position approximate their fair values, due teo the relatively short-term maturity of these
financial instruments, except for lease liabilities discosed in Note 14,

c)  Capital management polidas and obiactives

The Asscciation reviews its capital structure at least annually to ensure that the Association will
be able to continue as a going cancern.  The capital structure of the Association comprises mainly
its accumulated funds, specific funds, programme davelopment fund and grants from NCSS /
SGE, MSF and Tote Board. The Association’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the
pravious financial year.

5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Some of the Assoaation's transactions and arrangemants are with a related party and the effect of
these on the basis determined between the parties are reflected in thase financial statements. The
balances are unsecured, interest-frea and rapayable on damand.

Sigrificant related party transactions duning the year was as follows:

2021 2020
3 5
Transactions with School
Professicnal fees for services rendersd 1,556,000 1,613,078
Recharge of TOL feas 445,702 668,553
(] . Ik}

The remuneration of members of key management during the year was as follows:

2021 2020
B []
Short-term benefits 141,810 144,974
Post employment benefits 16,397 17,252
158,207 162,266

The number of members of key managament with remuneration within the below band during the year
was as follows:
2021 2020
5 s

Renumeration Band
£100,000 to $200,000 * & 7

*  Comprisaed of salary and bonus.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

& ACCUMULATED FUNDS

Actumulated funds included MSF and NCSS / SGE funded programmes that are restricted for use in
the operations of the respective programmes only.

The assets held under each specific fund mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents,
Accumulated funds are analysed as follows:

2021 2020
s 5

General accumulated funds 10,076,310 7,844,512
Designated for El programme 2,476,669 2,236,234
Cesignated for DAC programme 840,141 594 657
Designated for GROW programmea (28¢,04¢€) (241,115)
Designated for Rehabilitation Centre (762,372) (762,372)
Designated for Therapy Rehabiiitation programme (1,352,159)  (1,298,887)
Designated for Beyond Boundaries Club 74 058 45623

987,291 574,140
Accumulated funds balance 11,063,601 8,418,652
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

9 RIGHT-CF-USE ASSET

The Asscciation leasas land from Singapore Land Authority. Tha lease term is 3 years with an option
to extend for 3 years.,

Leasehold
land
$
Cost:
At April 1, 2019, March 31, 2020 and 2021 4,479,060
Accumulated deprecigtion:
At April 1, 2019 -
Depreciation 778,957
At March 31, 2020 778,967
Depraciation 776,967
At March 31, 2021 1,657,934
Carrying amount:
At March 31, 2021 2,921,126
At March 31, 2020 3,700,092
10 RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS
2021 2020
$ $
QOther receivables 60,298 67,693
Interest mcaivable from fixed deposits 3,025 64,740
Prepayments 40,443 58,971
Depesits 28,371 28,371
132,337 219,775
11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2021 2020
S $
Fixed deposits with banks 8,227,304 8,227,106
Cash at banks 10,696,985 8,854,308
18,924,289 17,081,414
Fixed deposits under pledge (192 984) (162 984)
Cash and cash eguivalents in the statement of cash fiows 18,731,305 16,888,430

The fixed deposits bear interest rates ranging from 0.05% to 0.90% (2020 : 0.15% to 1.97%) per
annum with a tenure ranging from 3 menths to 12 menths (2020 : 3 months to 12 month). The
deposits are readily convertible to cash at minimal cost.

Fixec deposits under pledge are pledged to a bank as security for issuance of a banker’s guarantee
provided to the Association.

24
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

12 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

2021 2020
5 $
Cther payables 421,229 435,736
Accrued expanses. 403,827 380,515
825,056 816,651
13  DBUETO NCSS [ SGE
2021 2020
s 5
Balance at baginning of year 819,356 560,663
Prior year funding received during the year 219,913 478,608
Accruals on Care and Share recaivable (266,884) (219,513)
Balance at end of yaar 772,387 819,358
14  LEASE LIABILITIES
2021 2020
$ s
Maturity analysis:
Year 1 825,972 825,972
Year 2 825,972 825,972
Year 3 825,972 825,972
Year 4 619,479 825,972
Year 5 - 519,479
3,097,395 3,923,367
Less: Unearnad intarest (117,386) (186,232)
2,960,009 3,737,135
Analysed as:
Currant 772,641 757,128
Non-current 2,207,368 2,980,009

2,980,009 3,737,135

15 CEFERRED CAPITAL DONATIONS
This fund was set up in 2004 to record donations received and funds from MSF and MCE for the cost

of proparty snd equipmeant at 55 Pasir Ris Drive 1, Cerebral Palay Centre, Singapore 519529, which
will be amortisac based on the estimated useful life of the property and equipment.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

2021 2020
[3 H
Capital grant and donations recelved:
Balanca st baginning of year 18,005,027 16,865,996
Acditions:
- Furniture and eguipment 28,725 8,314
- Ambulance 105,204 -
- Computers 5,521 16,500
- Office equipment 1,184,184 362,758
- Renovations 66,260 752,003
Wintten off 252 544
Balanca at end of year 19,395,365 18,005,02
Accumulated amortisation:
Balance at begirning of year 9,595,194 8,831,840
Amortisation 784,661 763,858
Written off 1252) (544}
Balance at end of year 10,379,603 95,5951
Carrying amount 9,015,766 8,409,833

16 NET ASSETS OF TRUST FUNDS
Trust funds represant specific financial assistance provided by Lee Foundation.

2021 2020
5 $
Balance at beginning of yaar 117,641 116,827
Amount disbursad (365,859) (258,576)
Amount recelvad 393,000 259,350
Balance at end of year 144,783 117,641
Representad by:
Cash and bank balances 144,??_3 117 641
17  MANPOWER COSTS
2021 2020
s $
Costs of defined contribution plans included in manpower costs 1,008,663 1,107,554

25
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

18 FUNDRAISING COSTS

2021 2020
$ 5
Steptember evant - 33,449
Charity Dinner event 22,358 28,641
22,358 62,090

Fundralsing costs from the Steptember event represent approximately nil (2020 : 23.2%) of the total
gross receipts from this event.

Fundraising costs from the Charity Dinner event represent approximataly 10.1% (2020 : 11.0%) of
the total gross receipts from this event.

19 TAXATION
All registered and exempt chanties will enjoy automatic income tax exemption and charities do not
need to file income tax effective from Year of Assessment 2008.

20  TAX EXEMPT RECEIPTS

The Association enjoys a concessicnary tax treatment whereby qualifying donors are granted 2.5 times
tax deduction for the donations made to the Association.

2021 2020
$ ]
Donations for which tax exempt receipts were issued 1,688 378 12985211

—_— e
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
(Charity Registration No. 00073 and
Societies Registration No. 0283/1957WEL)

SPECIAL PURPOSE REPORT ON
HEADQUARTERS

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
HEADQUARTERS
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the members of the Executive Committee of Cerebral Palsy Alllance Singapore (the
"Association”), the st of com;j i (the “Statement”) of the Headquarters for the year
ended March 31, 2021 are prepared in all materal respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting
described in notes to the statement and provisions of the Socleties Act, Chapter 311 (the "Societies Act™) and
the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and other relevant regulations (the “Charities Act™).

ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr Sailim Bin Abdul Kadir, BEM, PBM, JP
Honarary Treasurer

September 20, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
HEADQUARTERS

Opinion

We have audited the statement of comprehensive income (the "Statement”) of the Headquarters for the year
ended March 31, 2021, and the motes to the statement, including a summary of significant accounting
policles, as set out on pages 5 to 7.

In our opinion, the Statement of the Headquarters for the year ended March 31, 2021 is prepared in all
material respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in the notes to the statement,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("SSAs™). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement
section of our report. We are independent of the Headquarters in accordance with the Accounting and
Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entitles ("ACRA Code™) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements In Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

‘We draw attention to the notes to the statement, which describes the basis of accounting. The Statement Is
prepared to assist the Headquarters to meet the requirements of reporting to the National Council of Social
Service ("NCSS”) / SG Enable (*SGE"). As a result, the Statement may not be suitable for another purpose.
Our report is intended solely for the Headquarters and NCSS / SGE and should not be distributed to parties
other than the Headquarters or NCSS / SGE. Our opinion Is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Statement and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the Statement by the
Executive Committee set out on page 1.

Qur opinion on the Statement does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Statement, our responsibility Is to read the other infarmation and, in
deoing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Statement or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there Is a matenial misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Deiotte & Tocche L (Lnae Eroty Mo, TORLETIUAN S on acowrs " L e L “p3 A hapeer 1634

Financial Year 2020/21 | Annual Report




Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

HEADQUARTERS

Responsibilities of Management and Executive Committee for the Statement

Management Is resg for the preparation of the Stat: t in accordance with the basis of accounting
described In the notes to the statement, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the Statement, management s responsible for assessing the Headquarter's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Headquarter or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The E stive Ci Is responsible for overseeing the Headquarter's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that indudes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstaterment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, ional or , Misrepr , or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Headquarter's internal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, if any, and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Headguarter’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
medify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Headquarter to cease to
cantinue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

HEADQUARTERS

We communicate with the Executive Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that
we Identify during our audit.

Pl Tornhe ™ cpr—
Public Aocountan{i and

Chartered Accountants

Singapore

September 20, 2021
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE
HEADQUARTERS

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
March 31, 2021

INCOME
Grants
- National Council of Saclal Service ("NCSS”™) / SG Enable (“SGE")
- Community silver trust funds from NCSS [ SGE
- Care and share funds from NCSS f SGE
- Temporary Occupation Licance (“TOL") fee from Ministry of Social and
Family Development ("MSF) and Ministry of Education ("MOE™)
- Tote Board
- Miscellaneous grarts
Denations
- Spacific donations
- Urrestricted donations
VWOs-charities capabllity fund training grants
Amortisation of deferred capital donations
Membership fees
Wage credit scheme
Rental rebatas
Interest income on bank deposits.
Steptembar income
Charity Dinner incoma
Internal servicas rendered
Sundry income:
PECT supervision income
Tatal income

2021 2020
$ %

. 529,387
727,704 990,775
46,970 653,304
550,648 825,971
65,812 144,258
59,789 -
945,386 506,807
1,316,348 544,501
159,841 35,685
784,661 763,898
110 300
2,265,215 183,307
275,323 .
78,290 187,333
. 144,347
222,285 260,493
39,552 39,546
28,805 36,927
100,508 -
7,667,247 5 846,839

S ———
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

HEADQUARTERS
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (cont'd)
March 31, 2021
2021 2020
] $
EXPENDITURE
Manpower and related costs
- Salaries and rolatod coxpenses 1,443,842 1,389,591
- Medical, insurance and welfare axpensas 259,568 69,199
= Training and related expenses 71,086 116,603
General and administrative exparsas
- Communications 7,057 10,360
- Insurance 25,657 25,216
- Audit fees 8,813 12,939
- Transport charges 626 3321
- Supplies and matenals 27,738 47 462
- Advartisement expenses - 2,700
- Bank charges §,928 3,358
- Depreciation of property and equipment 901,651 745,681
- Depreciation of nght-of-usa assets 778,967 778,987
- Replacement of squipment 2,993 1,570
- Miscellaneous expensas 29,758 43,296
- bquipment written off 252 sa4
Uplssep and utilities
- Mairteranca 35,208 57,557
- Motor vehicle expansas 6,118 5,591
Programme/Projact expenses
= Event expenses - 160
Litilisation of specific funds 2,080,795 2,507,634
Litifisation of unrastricted donations 7,101 21,746
Steptember expenses ~ 33,449
Charity Dinnar expenses 22,358 28,641
Tote Baard - Staptember/Charity Dinnar 111,830 108,200
Community silver trust expenses. 43,206 32,104
Interest on leasa liabilities 68,845 84,047
PECT supervision expenses _bse08 00 -
Total expanditure 5,770,097 5,179,936
Operating surplus {deficit), representing
total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 1,897,150 (333,097)
Transfer (to) from spadfic fung {360,735) 356,748
Surplus payable to NCSS / SGE and MSF {1,536,415) (23,653)

Financial Year 2020/21 | Annual Report




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE
HEADQUARTERS

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT
March 31, 2021

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The statemant of comprehensive income are prepared based on the sgnificant acceunting policies below which
ara in accordance with the histoncal cost basis and are drawn up in accordance with the Societies Act, Chapter
311 (tha "Societies Act”) and the Charitias Act, Chapter 37 and other relevant regulaticns (the "Charities Adt®).
L. Cash donations are recognised on a cash basis,

2. Grants racelved from National Councll of Social Servica / 56 Enable, Ministiv of Social and Family
Development, Tote Board and Ministry of Education are recognised an an accrual basis,

% Cerebral Palsy Aliance Singapore recognises income when it transfers control of 2 good or rencers
servica to a customer,

5. Expenditure ralates only to operating expenses incured In the running of the Headquarters and are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Annual Report | Financial Year 2020/21




Deloitte.

Financial Year 2020/21 | Annual Report

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
(Charity Registration No. 00073 and
Societies Registration No. 0283/1957WEL)

SPECIAL PURPOSE REPORT ON
GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND
OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AND STATEMENT OF RESERVES

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the members of the Executive Committee of Cerebral Paisy Alliance Singapore (the
"Association”), the statement of comprehensive income and staterment of reserves (the “Statements”) of the
Goodwill, Rehabilitation and Occupational Workshop (the "Workshop®) for the year ended March 31, 2021 are
prepared in all material respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in notes to the
statements and provisions of the Socleties Act, Chapter 311 (the *Societles Act™) and the Charities Act, Chapter
37 and other relevant regulations (the "Charities Act™).

ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

-

Mr Sallim Bin Abdul Kadir, BBM, P&M, JP
Honorary Treasurer

September 20, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

Opinion

We have audited the statement of comprehensive Income and statement of reserves (the "Statements”)
of the Goodwill, Rehabilitation and Occupational Workshop (the “Workshop™) for the year ended
March 31, 2021, and the notes to the statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as
set out on pages 5to 7.

In our opinion, the Statements of the Workshop for the year ended March 31, 2021 are prepared in all
material respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in the notes to the statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("SSAs"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Workshop in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities
("ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financlal
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficlent and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

We draw attention to the notes to the statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The Statements
are prepared to assist the Workshop to meet the requirements of reporting to the National Council of Soclal
Service ("NCSS”) / SG Enable (*SGE") and Ministry of Social and Family Development ("MSF”). As a result, the
Statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is intended solely for the Workshop, NCSS /
SGE and MSF and should not be distributed to parties other than the Workshop, NCSS / SGE ar MSF. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statement by the
Executive Committee set out on page 1.

Qur opinion on the Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Statements, cur responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information Is materially inconsistent with the Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

Responsibilities of Management and Executive Committee for the Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation of the Statements in accordance with the basis of accounting
described In the notes to the statements, and such Internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the prep of the that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the Statements, management Is responsible for g the 3p's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless manags either i ds to liquidate the Workshop or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The E itive Ci Is responsible for overseeing the Workshop's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statements are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that indudes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, ional omissions, misrepr ions, or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Workshop's internal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, if any, and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Warkshop's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disdosures in the Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Workshop to cease to continue as a
gaing concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

We communicate with the Executive Committee regarding, among other matters, the pianned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit fMindings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Fetatte f Forihe ~ cqp—>
Public Accountants and

Chartered Accountants

Singapore

September 20, 2021
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CEREERAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
March 31, 2021

2021 2020
) S

INCOME
Grants

- Matioral Council of Social Service ("NCSS”) / SG Enable (*SGE*) 364,960 376,350

- Ministry cf Social and Family Development ("MSE™) 426,182 386,675
Donations

- Specific donations 21,657 19,752
Fees and charges

- Central marketing services sales 39,387 57,881

- Cafe project sales 35,929 54,308

= Sales of work by Worlshop trainess 44,132 58,571

- GROW [T & office sarvices 788 =

- SGE for transport subsidy 115,556 107,557
Miscelfanaous incoms 36 2!
Total incoma 1,052,627 1,061,035
EXPENDITURE
Manpower and related costs

- Salarles and refated expenses 532,964 557,269

- Medical, insurance and welfare expenses 12,579 9,595

- Training & related expenses 3,302 5,609
General and administrative expenses

= Communications 492 1,107

= Insurance 525 525

- Audtt fees 7,155 6,727

- Professional rehabilitation fees 197,324 223,800

- Transport chargas 31 112

- Supplies and materials 4,103 7,021

- Replacement of equipment: 1,128 1,478

- Miscellaneocus expenses 17,732 13,373

- Parent support group expensas 426 o297
Upkeep and utilities

- Maintenance 27,663 25,561

- Utilities 17,899 19,986

- Mator vehicle expenses 5,289 6,210
Programme/Project expenses

= Werkshop sxpanses 62,625 59,017

- Cantral markating sarvicas sxparsas 42,209 42,785

- Café project expansas 26,861 42,801

- GROW IT & Offica services expansa 38 -

- SGE transport subsidies 115,556 107,557
Uilisation of specific donations 77270 83,532
Total expenditure 1,156,171 1,215 3582
Operating deficit, representing

total comprehensive loss for the year (103,544) (154,267)
Transfers from spacific fund 55,61 64,081
Deficit receivable from NCSS / SGE and MSF 47,931 90,186
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

STATEMENT OF RESERVES
March 31, 2021

Accumulated Worlshop:
fund fund Total
$ H $

Balance at April 1, 2019 (150,929) 730,228 579,299
Operating defict, representing

total comprehensive loss for the year (90,155) (64,081) (154,267)
Balance at March 31, 2020 (241,115) 665,147 425,032
Oparating dafict, represanting

total comprehensive loss for the year {47.931) (55,613) (103,544)
Balance at March 31, 2021 (289,048) £10,534 321 468
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CEREERAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The statement of comprehensive income and statement of reserves are prepared based on the significant
accounting policies balow which are in accordance with the historical cost basis and are drawn up in accordance
with the Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the "Societies Act”) and the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and other relevant
regulations (the "Charities Act").

1. Cash donations are recognised on a cash basis.

2. Grants recaived from MNational Council of Social Serwice [ SG Enable and Ministry of Socal and Farmily
Development are recogrisad on an accrual basis.

3. Cerebral Paley Alliance Singapore recognises income when it transfers control of 2 good or renders
sarvice to a customer.

4,  Programme fees are recognised when the services are rendered,

5. Expenditure ralates orly to operating expanses incurred in the running of the pragramme and are
recognisad on an accrual basis,

6.  The accumulated fund is restricted for the operations of this programme only, for the bensfit of its
intendad dients. In kesping with the funder/donors’ intert for the use of the monies, the funds wil not
be transferred out of the programme for other purposss.,

7.  The Workshep fund was established in 1984, Inrcome derived from the workshop projects and cash

donastiors for the workshop are channelled to this fund, The fund is to be utilised for the genersl welfare
of workshop trainees.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
(Charity Registration No. 00073 and
Societies Registration No. 0283/1957WEL)

SPECIAL PURPOSE REPORT ON
EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AND STATEMENT OF RESERVES

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the members of the Executive Committee of Cerebral Palsy Alllance Singapore (the
“Association™), the of prehensive income and statement of reserves (the “Statements”) of the
Early Intervention Continuum (“EI1") for the year ended March 31, 2021 are prepared in all material respects,
in accordance with the basis of accounting described in notes to the statements and provisions of the Sodieties
Act, Chapter 311 (the “Socleties Act™) and the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and other relevant regulations (the
“Charitles Act™).

ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Honorary Treasurer

September 20, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE

EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM

Opinion

We have audited the statement of comprehensive income and statement of reserves (the "Statements”) of
the Early Intervention Continuum (“EI") for the year ended March 31, 2021, and the notes to the statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 5to 7.

In our opinion, the Statements of El for the year ended March 31, 2021 are prepared in all material respects,
in accordance with the basis of accounting described in the notes to the statements,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibiiities
under those standards are further described In the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements
section of our report. We are indepandent of EI in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities ("ACRA
Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ACRA Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of g and R on Distribution

We draw attention to the notes to the staternents, which describes the basis of accounting. The Statements
are prepared to assist £l to meet the requirements of reporting to the National Council of Social Services
("NCSS") / SG Enable (*SGE") and Ministry of Social and Family Development ("MSF"). As a result, the
Statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is intended solely for EI, NCSS / SGE and MSF
and should not be distributed to parties other than EI, NCSS / SGE or MSF. Our opinion 5 not maodified in
respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statement by the
Executive Committee set out on page 1,

Our opinion on the Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be matarially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there |s a material misstaterment of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM

Responsibilities of Management and Executive Committee for the Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the Statements in accordance with the basis of accounting
described in the notes to the statements, and for such Internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Statements, management is responsible for assessing El's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting uniess management either intends to liquidate EI or to cease cperations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Executive Committee Is responsible for overseeing EI's financlal reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statements are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when |t exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an epinion on the
effectiveness of EI's internal contral.

{c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, If any, and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the approp of manag t's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on El's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause El to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM

We communicate with the Executive Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we |dentify during our audit.

G i
Jebitte 4 Torihs epr—
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

September 20, 2021
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

March 31, 2021
2021 2020
$ 5

INCOME
Grants

= National Council of Social Service ("NCSS®) / SG Enable (*SGE") 214,622 849,624

- Ministry of Social and Family Development ("MSF™) 3,038,683 3,056,677
Donations

- Spedific donations 95,118 125,274
Fees and charges

- Early Intervention Continuum ("E17) 345,240 407,375

= SGE for transport subsidies 160,309 126,693
Total incomea 4 557,872 4,565,643
EXPENDITURE
Manpower 2nd related costs

= Sglaries and related expenses 2,484,729 4,602,063

- Medical, insurance and welfare exoersas 28,851 25,707

- Training and related expenses 35,098 22,893
General and administrative expensas

- Communicaticns 4,538 5,098

= Insurance 1,216 1,716

- Audit fees 7,155 6,727

- Professional rehabilitation fees 1,268,050 1,290,990

- Transport charges 6 379

- Supplies and matenals 14,706 18,596

= Replacemeant of equipment 991 #88

- Miscellanecus expenses 39,263 30,114

- School fees writtan off . 7,555

- Parent suppart group expenses 851 1,593
Upkeep and utikties

- Maintenance 88,988 85,542

- Utiities 80,489 96,625
Programma/Projact expanses

- SGE for transport expansas 160,309 126,693

- Public education/campaigns 7,179 21,036
Utilisation of specific donations 40,471 52,812
Total expenditura 4,?_5_7-',,3"30 4,396,727
Operating surplus, representing

total comprehensive income for the year 285,082 168,816
Transfers to specific fund (54,647 (72,462)
Surplus payable to NCSS / SGE and MSF (240,435) (96,454)
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM

STATEMENT OF RESERVES
March 31, 2021

Balance at April 1, 2019

Cperating surp'us, represant:ng
total comprahensive income for the year

Balance at March 31, 2020

Operating surpius, represanting
total comprehensiva income for the year

Balance at March 31, 2021

Financial Year 2020/21 | Annual Report

Accumulated E

fund fund Iotal

$ 3 : ]
2,139,780 984,786 3,124,566
96,454 72,462 168,916
2,236,234 1,057,248 3,293,482
240,435 54,647 295,082
2,476,669 1,111,895 3,588,564




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM

NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The statement of comprehensive income and statament of reserves are preparad based on the significant
accounting policies balow which are in accordance with the historical cost basis and are drawn up in accordance
with the Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the "Soceties Act”) and the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and other relevant
megulations (the "Charities Act™).

1.  Cash denations are recognised on a cash basis.

2. Grants received from National Counal of Social Service / SG Enetle and Ministry of Social and Family
Development are recognisad on an accrual basis.

3. Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore recognises income when it transfers control of a good or renders service
to a customer,

4.  Programma faes are recognised when the services are rendered.

5. Expenditura relates only t operating expenses incurmad in tha running of the pragramme and are
recognisad on an accrual basis.

6. The accumulsted fund is restricted for the opamtions of this programme only, for the benefit of its
intended dients. In keaping with the funder/deners’ intant for the use of the monies, the funds wil not
ba transferred out of the programme for other purposes,

7 The specfic fund |s used to help the finanoal needy children under Early Intervention Continuum to
subsidisa their fees, purchase of assistive rehabilitative aids and waifare neads,
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
(Charity Registration No. 00073 and
Societies Registration No. 0283/1957WEL)

SPECIAL PURPOSE REPORT ON
DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AND STATEMENT OF RESERVES

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the members of the Executive Committee of Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore (the
"Association”), the stat it of comprehensive income and statement of reserves (the "Statemants”) of the
Day Activity Centre ("DAC") for the year ended March 31, 2021 are prepared in all material respects, In
accordance with the basis of accounting described In notes to the statements and provisions of the Socdeties
Act, Chapter 311 (the “Societies Act™) and the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and other relevant regulations (the
“Charities Act™).

ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr Sallim Bin Abdul Kadir, BBM, PBM, 1P
Henarary Treasurer

September 20, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE
Opinion
We have the st t of comp e and stat of reserves (the "Statements”) of

the Day Activity Centre ("DAC”) for the year ended March 31, 2021, and the notes to the statements,
including & summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 5 to 7.

In our opinion, the Statements of DAC for the year ended March 31, 2021 are prepared In all material
respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in the notes to the statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("SSAs”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described In the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements
section of our report. We are independent of DAC in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatery Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities
(“ACRA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are rel to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

We draw attention to the notes to the statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The Statements
are prepared to assist DAC to meet the requirements of reporting to the National Council of Soclal Service
("NCSS") / SG Enable ("SGE") and Mlnlnry of Social and Family Development ("MSF"). As a result, the
Statements may not be suitable for Qur report is intended solely for DAC, NCSS / SGE and
MSF and should not be distributed to any other | parties other than DAC, NCSS / SGE or MSF, Our opinion Is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statement by the
Executive Committee set out on page 1.

Our opinion on the Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information Is materfally Inconsistent with the Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaterment of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE

ibilities of t and Executive Committee for the Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the Statements in accordance with the basis of accounting
described in the notes to the statements, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Statements, management is responsible for assessing DAC's ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
filed ing unless it either intends to liguidate DAC or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Executive Committee is responsible for overseeing DAC's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statements are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
coliusion, forgery, intentional omissi misrep , or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal contrel relevant to the audit in crder to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of DAC’s internal control.

{c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, if any, and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on DAC's ability to continue as a going concern, If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the S ts or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause DAC to cease to continue as a golng concern.

Annual Report | Financial Year 2020/21




Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE

We communicate with the Executive Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intarnal control that
we ldentify during our audit.

Jebite § Torwfs eqpr—>
Public Accountants and

Chartered Accountants
Singapore

September 20, 2021
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
March 31, 2021
2021 2020
$ $
INCOME
Grants
- National Courcil of Socid Service ("NCSS") / 56 Enable ("SGE") -
Tote Board 176,168 180,333
- Ministry of Social and Family Development (*MSF") 760,587 652,943
Deonations
- Specific donations 23,041 11,850
Feas and charges
- Day Activity Centre ("DAC") feas 161,715 155,610
- 5GE transport subsidies 112,174 98,063
- Miscellaneous Income 120 -
Total ncoma 1,263,805 1,098,839
EXPENDITURE
Manpewer and related costs
- Salaries and related costs 440,769 473,222
- Medical, insurance and walfare expenses 11,693 7,340
Training and related expenses 3,48 5,267
Ceneral and administrative expenses
- Communications. 171 504
- Insurance 370 35
- Audit fees 7,155 6,727
- Professional rehabilitation fees 339,179 321,842
- Transport charpes 76 145
- Supplies and materials 7,248 12,896
- Reglacement of equipment 848 1,882
- Miscellaneous experses 18,990 14,735
- Parent support group axpenses 426 997
Upkeap and utilities
- Maintenance 27,961 29475
- Utilities 17,899 19,986
- Motar vehicle expanses 1,929 3,178
Programme/Project expenses
- Manl expenses 4514 4164
- 5GF for transport expenses 112,174 98,063
- Publlc education/campaigns 897 -
Utilisstion of specific donations 101,981 81,403
Total expenditure 1,057,261 1,081,862
Operating surplus, representing
total comprehensive income for the year 166,544 16,977
Transfars from specific fund 78,940 69,513
Surplus payable to NCSS / SGE and MSF (245,484) (86,490)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE

STATEMENT OF RESERVES
March 31, 2021

Balance at April 1, 2019

Operating surplus, representing
tatal comprehensive incoma for the year

Balance at March 31, 2020

Cpearating surplus, reprasenting
total compreharsive income for the year

Balance at March 31, 2021

Sea accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Accumulated DAC
fund Fund Total
$ $ ¢
508,167 899,002 1,407,169
86,490 (69,513) 16,977
554,657 829,489 1,424,146
245,484 (78,940} 166,544
840,141 750,549 1,590,690




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE

NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The statement of comprehensive income and statement of reserves are prepared based on the significant
accounting policies balow which are in accordance with tha historical cost basis and are drawn up in accordance
with the Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the "Soceties Act”) and the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and other relavant
megulations (the "Charities Act™).

1.  Cash denations are recognised on a cash basis.

2. Grants received from MNational Council of Social Service / 5G Enable and Ministry of Socal and Family
Development are recognisad on an accrual basis.

3. Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore recognises income when it trensfers control of a good or renders
sarvica to a oustomer.

4.  Programma faes are recognised when the services are rendered.

5. Expenditura ralates orly to operating expenses incurmed in the running of the pragramme and are
recognisad on an accrual basis.

6.  The accumulated fund is restricted for the operations of this programme only, for the banafit of its
intended dients. In keaping with the funder’/donors’ intent for the use of the monies, the funds will not
ba transferred out of the programme for other purposes,

7. The specific fund is used to help the financial needy cliants in the Day Activity Centre to subs:dise their
transpormation fees, programme fees, purchase of assistive rehabilitat ve aids and welfare naeds,
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
(Charity Registration No. 00073 and
Societies Registration No. 0283/1957WEL)

SPECIAL PURPOSE REPORT ON
REHABILITATION CENTRE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AND STATEMENT OF RESERVES

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
REHABILITATION CENTRE
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the members of the Executive Committee of Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore (the
"Association”), the statement of comprehansive income and statement of reserves {the “Statements”) of the
Rehabilitation Centre (the "Centre”) for the year ended March 31, 2021 are prepared in ail material respects,
In accordance with the basis of accounting described in nates to the statements and provisiens of the Sodeties
Act, Chapter 311 (the “Societies Act”) and the Charlties Act, Chapter 37 and other relevant regulations (the
“Charities Act”).

ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

-
Mr Saliim Bin Abdul Kadir, B&M, PaM, 1P
Honorary Treasurer

September 20, 2021

Annual Report | Financial Year 2020/21




- Diloite & Towche LLF
Usicuie Entity ba, TOSLLOTZ1A
® & Shenton Wiy
OQUE Downtown 2

w3300
Srgapors OGEB0S

Tet +65 6224 8298
Fa +65 65386166
o eI COMYSE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
REHABILITATION CENTRE

Opinion

We have audited the statement of comprehensive iIncome and statement of reserves (the "Statements”) of
the Rehabilitation (the “Centre”) for the year ended March 31, 2021, and the notes to the statements,
Including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 5to 7.

In our opinion, the Statements of the Centre for the year ended March 31, 2021 are prepared in all material
respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in the notes to the statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("SSAs®). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements
section of our report, We are independent of the Centre in accordance with the .Amnunbng and Corporate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Acc and A Entities
("ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ACRA Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

We draw attention to the notes to the statements, which describes the basis of ace Ing. The Stat ts
are prepared to assist the Centre to meet the requirements of reporting to the National Council of Social
Services ("NCS5”) / SG Enable ("SGE”). As a result, the Statements may not be suitable for ancther purpose.
Qur report is intended solely for the Centre and NCSS / SGE and should not be distnbuted to parties other
than the Centre or NC55 / SGE. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statement by the
Executive Committee set out on page 1.

Qur opinion on the Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, In doing
50, consider whether the other information Is materially inconsistent with the Statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Desoie & Touche LU fLiniue Enety Mo, TOSLLOTIIAL i3 o0 sCC0umng kmted M0ty Gear BTG ragitened v Sngaoons wnder the Lmaes Lisbdey Parmersnips Ac (Chapeer 1634

Financial Year 2020/21 | Annual Report




Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

REHABILITATION CENTRE

Responsibilities of Management and Executive Committee for the Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation of the Statements In accordance with the basis of accounting
described in the notes to the statements, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Centre’s abllity to continue as a
going cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Centre or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The E stive Ci Is responsible for overseeing the Centre’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statements are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that indudes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstaterment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, ional or , Misrepr , or the override of internal control.

(b} Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Centre's intemal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, if any, and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Centre’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention In our auditor's
report to the related disdosures in the Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Centre to cease to continue as a going
conoem.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
REHABILITATION CENTRE

We communicate with the Executive Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we |dentify during our audit.

P’gffgc:fmng andﬁm i
Chartered Accountants

Singapore

September 20, 2021
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CEREERAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
REHABILITATION CENTRE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
March 31, 2021

INCOME
Recharge of rehabllitation expenses

EXPENDITURE
Manpower and related costs
- Selaries and related expenses
- Medical, insurance and wellare expenses
= Training and related expenses
General and administrative expensas
Communications
- Insurance
- Audit fees
Transport chamges
Supplies and matenals
- Replacement of equipment
- Miscelianeous expenses
Upkeep and utilties
- Maintenance
- Llities
Programme/Projact axpanseas
- Fublic education/campaigns
Interral services rendered expenses
Total expenditure

Operating surplus, representing
total comprehensive surplus for the year

2021 2020
B $
3,703,362 3,846,380
3,481,033 3,502,485
37,564 32,245
15,816 65,122
2,035 5,294
2,087 2,274
16,146 10,047
247 1,257
45,558 56,833
12,255 4,534
20,836 9,799
25,929 27,257
12,211 13,633
3,478 291
25,267 25,309
3,703,362 3,846,380
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
REHABILITATION CENTRE

STATEMENT OF RESERVES

March 31, 2021

Accumulated
fund
3

Balance at Apnl 1, 2019, March 31, 2020 and 2021 (762,372)
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CEREERAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

REHABILITATION CENTRE

NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The statement of comprehensive income and statement of reserves are prepared based on the significant
accounting policies balow which are in accordance with the historical cost basis and are drawn up in accordance
with the Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the "Societies Act”) and the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and other relevant
regulations (the "Charities Act").

L

2.

Cash donations are recognised on a cash basis.

Grants recaived from MNational Council of Social Serwice f SG Enable and Ministry of Socal and Farmily
Development are recogrisad on an accrual basis.

Cerebral Paley Alliance Singapore recognises income when it transfers control of 2 good or renders
sarvice to a customer.

Programme fees are recognised when the services are rendered,

Expenditure relates orly to oparating expanses incurred |h the running of the pragramme and are
recognisad on an accrual basis,

The accumulated fund is restricted for the operations of this programme only, for the bensfit of its

intendad clients. In keeping with the funders’/donors’ intent for the use of the monies, the funds will not
be transferred out of the programme for other purposses.,
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
(Charity Registration No. 00073 and
Societies Registration No. 0283/1957WEL)

SPECIAL PURPOSE REPORT ON
THERAPY REHABILITATION

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AND STATEMENT OF RESERVES

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
THERAPY REHABILITATION
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the b of the E Committee of Cerebral Paisy Alllance Singapore (the
“Association”), the statement of comprehensive income and statement of reserves (the “Statemants”) of the
Therapy Rehabllitation (the "Centre”) for the year ended March 31, 2021 are prepared in all material respects,
in accordance with the basis of accounting described in notes to the statements and provisions of the Societies
Act, Chapter 311 (the "Societies Act”) and the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and other relevant regulations (the
"Charities Act™).

ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr Sellim Bin Abdul Kadir, 88M, PBM, 1P
Honorary Treasurer

September 20, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

THERAPY REHABILITATION
Opinion
We have audited the of comp! e income and st of reserves (the "Statements”) of

the Therapy Rehabilitation (the “Centre®) for the year ended March 31, 2021, and the notes to the
statements, Including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 5 to 7,

In our opinion, the Statements of the Centre for the year ended March 31, 2021 are prepared in all material
respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in the notes to the statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("S54s"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements
section of cur report, We are independent of the Centre in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities
("ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requi that are relevant to cur audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

We draw attention to the notes to the statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The Statements
are prepared to assist the Centre to meet the requirements of reporting to the National Council of Social Service
("NCSS”) / SG Enable ("SGE"). As a result, the Statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report
is intended solely for the Centre and NCSS / SGE and should not be distributed to parties other than the Centre
or NCSS / SGE. Qur opinion is not medified in respect of this matter,

Information Other than the Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other infarmation comprises the Statement by the
Executive Committee set out on page 1.

Our opinion on the Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, In
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially Inc nt with the St s or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaterment of this other Information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
THERAPY REHABILITATION

Responsibilities of Management for the Statements

Management is resg for the p ion of the Statements in accordance with the basis of accounting
described in the notes to the statements, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the pre; tion of the S that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Centre's ability to continue as a
going cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Centre or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Executive Committee |5 responsible for overseeing the Centre’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statements are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresantations, or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Centre’s internal control.

(<) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, If any, and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going cancern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Centre’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Centre to cease to continue as a going
conoenm.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
THERAPY REHABILITATION

We communicate with the Executive Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

gc’éﬂfd 75“% Tewr—

lic Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

September 20, 2021
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
THERAPY REHABILITATION

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
March 31, 2021

INCOME

Grants from National Coundl of Social Service [/ SG Enable
Therapy treatment fees

Total income

EXPENDITURE
Manpower and relsted costs
- Salaries and related costs
General and administrative expenses
- Professional rehabilitation fess
- Transport charges
- Miscellsnecus expenses
Total expenditure

Operating deficit, representing
total comprehensive loss for the year

(5]]

2021 2020
$ s
233,818 229,950
6,430 18,684
240,248 248,634
57,788 60,460
234,174 203,698
1,524 2,362
34 195
283,520 266,715
(53,272} (18,081)
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
THERAPY REHABILITATION

STATEMENT OF RESERVES
March 31, 2021

Accumulatad
fund
s
Balance at April 1, 2019 (1,280,806)
Operating defiat, representing total comprehensive loss for the year (18,081)
Balance at March 31, 2020 (1,298,887)
Operating defiat, nepresenting total comprehensive loss for the year (53,272)
Balance at March 31, 2021 [1,352,159)
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

THERAPY REHABILITATION

NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The statement of comprehensive Income and statement of reserves are prepared based on the significant
accounting policies below which ara In dance with the hi | cost basis and are drawn up I accordance
with the Societies Adt, Chapter 311 (the “Societies Act”) and the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and ather relevant
reguiztions (the "Charties Act™).

1.

Z

Cash donations are recognised on 2 cash basis,

Grants received from National Council of Sccial Service / SG Enable and Ministry of Scaal and Family
Development are recognisad on an accrual basls.

Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore recognises income when it transfers control of 2 good or renders service
to a customar,

Programme fees are recognisad when the services are rendered.

Expenditure relates only to opsrating expenses incurred in the runming of the programme and ars
recognised on an accrual basis.

The accumulated fund s restrcted for the operations of this programme only, for the bensfit of is

intended clierts, In keaping with the funder/donors’ intert for the use of tha monies, the funds will not
be transferred out of the programme for other purposes.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the members of the Executive Committee of Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore School
{the "School”),

a)  the financial statements of the School as set out on pages S to 33 are drawn up in accordance with
the provisions of the Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the "Socleties Act”), the Charities Act, Chapter 37
and other relevant regulations (the "Charities Act and Regulations”), the ruies and regulations Issued
by the Ministry of Education ("MOE"), National Council of Social Service (“NCSS*} and SG Enable
("SGE"), and the Financial Reporting Standards In Singapore so as to present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the School as at March 31, 2021, and the financial performance,
changes in funds and reserves and cash flows of the School for the financial year then ended;

b)  the receipt, expenditure and investment of monles and the acquisition and disposal of assets by the
Schaol during the year is in accordance with the rules and regulations issued by the MOE, the NCSS
and the SGE;

c)  the donations and other receipts of the School are used for approved projects and purpeses intended,
and are in accordance with the objectives of the School as required under Regulation 11 of the Charities
(Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations;

d)  the School has complied with the requir its of Regulation 15 of the Ch (Institutions of a Public
Character) Regulations;

e]  the accounting and other records required to be kept by the School have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Societies Regulations enacted under the Sodeties Act, the Charities
Act and Reguiations, and the rules and regulations Issued by the MOE, the NCSS and the SGE; and

f) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the School will be able to
pay its debts when they fall due.

ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

ol

Honorary Treasurer

September 20, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore School (the “School”),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes In funds and reserves and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies, as set out on pages 5 to 33,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the “Societies Act”), the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and other
relevant regulations (the "Charities Act and Regulations”), the rules and regulations issued by the Ministry
of Education ("MOE”"), the Mational Council of Social Service (“NCSS”) and the SG Enable ("SGE"), and
Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore ("FRSs") so as to present fairly, in all material aspects, the
financial position of the School as at March 31, 2021 and of the financial performance, changes in funds and
reserves and cash flows of the School for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("SSAs"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the School in accordance with the Accounting and
Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities ("ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

School Management Committee is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the Statement by the Executive Committee set out on page 1.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

Responsibilities of School Management Committee and Executive Committee for the Financial
Statements

School Management Committes is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the provisions of the Socleties Act, the Charities Act and Regulations, the
rules and regulations issued by the MOE, the NCSS and the SGE, and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining
a systemn of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and
that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, the School Management Committee is responsible for assessing the
School’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the School Management Committee either intends
to liquidate the School or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Executive Committee |s responsible for overseeing the School's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to |ssue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstaternents can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal cantrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the School Management Committee.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of the School Management Committee’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the School's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the School to cease
to continue as a golng concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

(e) Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Executive Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in Internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required to be kept by the School have been properly kept
in accordance with the provisions of the Socleties Regulations enacted under the Societies Act, the Charities
Act and Regulations and rules and regulations issued by the MOE, the NCSS and the SGE.

During the course of our audit, nothing has come to our attention that caused us to believe that during the
year:

{a) the receipt, expenditure and investment of monies and the acquisition and disposal of assets by the
School have not been carried out in accordance with the rules and regulations issued by the MOE, the
NCSS and the SGE;

(b} the donations and other receipts of the School are not used for approved projects and purposes
intended, and are not in accordance with its objectives as required under Regulation 11 of the Charities
(Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations; and

(c) the School has not complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 of the Charities (Institutions of a
Public Character) Regulations.

Frebe 4 Toreks ™ cqp—>
Public Accountants and

Chartered Accountants

Singapore

September 20, 2021
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
March 31, 2021

Note 2021 2020
L 7 5

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash aquivalents 6,104,414 4,179,257
Other recevables and prapsyments & 38,162 47,779
Job support schame grant receivables 104,364 378,846

6,246,940 4,605,882
NON-CURRENT ASSET
Equipmant 7 1,005,898 590,755
LESS:
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Dua to Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore ("HQ") 5 554,202 329,831
Orther payables and accrued expenses g 462,891 361,120
Deferred job support scheme grant income 163,846 378,846

1,180,932 1,069,897
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Deferred capital donations 2 473,972 473,433
NET ASSETS 5,597,927 3,953,307
REPRESENTED BY:
FUNDS AND RESERVES
General reserves 4,642,973 3,198,079
Specific funds 10 854,570 649,820
Unrastricted funds 97,130 102,154
Programme development fund 3,254 3,254

5,597,927 3,953,307

INet assats af trust funds 11 22,2756 36,207

Sea accompanying notes to financlal statements.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
March 31, 2021

2031 2030
General General
fund/ fund/
MODE and MOE and
NCSS ¢ SGE N
fund tunding
for total far total
eperating Other operating Other
Hote _empenditure funds Tetai expenditure funds Total
+ * L] s L L]
INCOME
Geanis from MOE and NCSE | SGE
- Total operating expenditure 5,018 087 - 5,018,087 4,514,288 - 4514288
- Spacal Education (SPEDT)
Frnancai Assstance Scheme
(FAS) 2,677 . 9,677 11,870 . 11,870
- School meal programme 28,031 - 28,032 28,688 = 5,685
- Annual grant for Discretonary
Financial Assstance ("DFA™) 596 = 5518 13,380 - 13,380
- Public transport subsidy o - e 240 - 40
- Sta'f training vote 78,705 - 78,708 765 - 15,652
- Bdditional training vole 19,038 - 18,038 14,600 - 14,600
High peeds grant 540,366 - 540, 368 413,436 . 413,436
= MOE secondment fund 120,548 = 130,542 105,587 = 105,587
- Contract taaching 54,693 - 54,693 138,386 - 138,386
- Curriculum Enhancement Fund
("CEFT) 33,853 - 33,853 48,250 . 48,250
= Addmonal Currcy lum
Enhancement Fund ("ACEF") 148,750 . 148,750 140,000 . 142,000
- Information and
Communicathans Technology
(1T") development grant 56,240 : 55,245 41,580 : 51,560
School-to-work ("52W") start
up fund 12.250 - 12,250 45,000 = 43,000
- BATRAL BUPBOTT GPOUD 1,993 . 1,893 2,500 . 2,500
- Prowision of admin manager 02851 - 102,651 102851 - 102,851
< MOE grart for Tem porary
Occupation Ucence (TTOLT) fee B 245,702 445,702 - 568,553 668,553
- Rantal rebates - 22,85 e an - - -
- Bdusave grant and achievament
amard - 1,975 978 . 30,075 0075
= Oppartunity grant - 5,240 5,240 - 7120 7120
= School lees - local - 34,029 54,028 » 51,641 51,801
- School fess - foreign = 48,768 48,765 = 48,950 45,960
= Annua | adjustments of MOE
grants for price year 67,217 - 67,217 37,093 - 37,093
- Gionts reckived from NCSS [ SGE 12 1,881,458 - 1,863,458 1,740,738 < 1,740,738
- Annual adjustments of NCSS /
SGE grants for prior year 12 - - - 15720 - 13,720
- Ministry of Sockel & Famlily
Develzpment ("M5F) grants
for VWO transport subsicies - 193,808 153,808 - 169,506 165,508
- NAC Tote Board fund - 686 EBE - 550 560
- Unsnlie ited domations 18 - 13,988 13,988 - ARk 71,239
- Designated dorations 13,16 - 189,487 189,487 - 185,656 185,666
= Amortisation of deferred capital
donations L] - 141,774 141,774 - 134,515 134,515
Job suppert seneme - 1,045,804 1,046,804 .
= Miscellaneous grants = 11,649 11,645 = =
Other mcome:
- Inberest income - 134 124 - 124 124
= Miscellaneous comes = 1,140 1,040 - 80 B0
- Minimart salas - 2,787 2,197 - 4,304 4,304
= Others = AX3 423 - im 181
Total income -’ v g,
6
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {conlt'd)
March 31, 2021

2031 2030
General General
fund; fund/
MOE and MOE and
NCSS [ SGE NCSS
Furling Tunaling
Tor total for total
operating Other operating Other
Hote _expenditure funds Total expenditure funds Total
L] L] + + s %
EXPENDITURE
Salaries, bonuses, CPF and SOF
- MOE seconded teaching staff
(enchude funding from special
putpbse grant - MDE
secondmeant fund) 205,600 . 205,600 206,679 . 205679
- Teaching tall 3,800,326 - 3,600,328 3,552,071 - 3552071
- Profescional staff 40,198 - 40,196 55,234 - 55,234
- Support st ff 498,428 - 458,428 505824 - 505,824
Contract staff {lozum}) 43,308 = 43 305 10,680 . 10,680
Stalt welfare 59,392 59,392 43,368 43,369
Supplies B materiak 21,302 . 21,302 18,808 . 18,908
School function & activities 36,791 - .79l 34,501 . 34,601
Dearecistion of egelpmant 7 217,003 - 217.003 185,367 . 185,367
Repalr & maintenance 176,404 - 178 404 145,123 - 145,123
Unitles 65,434 - 65.404 74,409 . T4409
Communications B.438 - B.438 11,233 - 11,233
Hinimart expenses 3,785 - 3.7M05 2,239 . 239
Professional rehabditation & other
arvicas ] 1620625 - 1L,620.625 L6787 - 1,672,873
VWG transport subsidies - 193,609 193.809 - 163, 506 169,506
Tok lews 3 ] 668,553 668, 553 - 663, 553 668,553
Designuted fund expenses:
= MOE fund 933159 - 932159 779,939 = 779,999
- Other furds 138,584 138,584 - 173,088 179,099
Utiikza tion of unrestricted fund 15,012 19.092 5 2,940 2,940
Utilisation of S2W start up fund 11,434 - 11,434 25,000 - 45,000
unilksaton for contract teaching
resources 54,653 = 54,693 138,386 5 138,386
Utilisaton for SFED FAS 10,229 - 10,229 1721 - 11,721
Utilkzaton for schoal meal
programire 25,910 - 25,910 18,449 - 18,449
Cther expenditure 257,146 = 257,146 123,022 = 123,022
Total expendiure 7569650 1.013,758 8,988 408 7716186 1030008 6.739.384
Dperating surplus, representing
total comprehensive income
for the year 252,333 1,392,287 1,644,620 (71,350) 352,406 281,056

Sea accompanying notes to financlal statements.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS AND RESERVES
March 31, 2021

Spacific Programme
General funds Unrestricted development
rEserves {MNote 10} funds fund Total
% L] 3 5 %
Balance at April 1, 2019 3,171,238 463,907 33,855 3,254 3,672,251
Wet surplus, representing total
comprehensive income for the year 26 844 185,913 68,299 = 281,056
Balance at March 31, 2020 3,198,079 649,820 102,154 3,254 3,353,307
ket surplus, representing total
comprehensive (ncame for the year 1,444 894 204,750 {5.024) - 1,644620
Balance at March 31, 2021 4647 873 654,570 97.130 3,254 5,597,927

Sea accompaiying notes to financial statements,
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
March 31, 2021

2021 2020
5 5
Operating activitias
Cperating surplus 1,644 620 281,056
Adjustmeants for:
217,003 185,367

Deprecianon of equipment

Amortisabion of deferred capital donations (141,774) {134,513)

Interest income (124) [124)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 1,718,725 331,784
Cther receivables and prepayments 9,617 (9,624)

Job suppart scheme grant receivables 59,482 -
Due to the HQ 224,271 (115,564)
Other payables and accrued expenses 101,771 50,782
Cash genaratad from oparations 2,114 BB6 257,378
Interest received 124 124
Net cash from operating activities 2,114,990 257,502

Investing activity
Purchase of equipment, represanting

net cash usad in investing activity (Note A) (189 833) (131,275)

1,925,157 126,227
4,179,257 4,053,030
6,104,414 4,179,257

MNat increase in cash and cash egulvalants
Cash and cash equvalents at baginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note A
During the year, the School acquired equipment of which $143,751 (2020 : $55,559) is funded through
defermed capital donations.

Sea accompanying notes to financial staternents,
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

1 GENERAL

The Schoaol (Charity Registration Mo. 00073 end Societies Registration Mo, 0283/1957WEL) is engaged
in providing education, training in social developmant, pre-vocational training skilis and tharapautic
treatment for spastic children. The School is domiciled in Singapore with Its registered office and
principal place of operation at 65 Pasir Ris Drive 1, Carebral Palsy Centre, Singapore 519529,

HQ) and the Schocl are funded by donatians from the general public and supported by Ministry of Social
& Famlly Development ("MSF”), Ministry of Education ("MOE”) and their affiliates. The programs are
generally spiit up by age group, where programs for students aged 7 to 18 years are run by the School,
while all other programs are run by the HQ. The financial statermsnts of the Scheol should be read in
conjunction with the HQ as the results of the HQ are in a separate set of financial statemants.

The financial statements are expressed In Singapore dollars, which is the functional cumency of the
Schoal,

Tha financial statemants of the School for the year ended March 31, 2021 wera authorisad for issue
by the Exacutive Committea on September 20, 2021.

2 SLUIMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The flinancial statements are prepared in accordance with the histoncal cost
basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Societies Act, the Charities Act and Regulations, tha rules and regulations issued by
the MOE and the MCSS / SGE, and Financial Reporting Standards in Singspore ("FRSs")}

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideraticn given in exchange for goods
and servicas.

Fair valus is the proe that would be recaived to sell an assst or paid to transfer a liability in 2n orderly
transaction betwesn market participants at the measurement date, regardiass of whethar that price
is diractly ahsarvable ar estimated using anather valuation tachmique. n sstimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the School takes Into account the characteristics of the asset or liability which
market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability &t the measuremant
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined
on such a basis, axcept for leasing transactions that are within the scope of FRS 116 Leases, and
measiremeants that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as value in use in
FRS 36 Impairment of Assels,

2.2 ADOPTICN OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - In the current financial year, the School has adopted
all the new and revised FRSs and Interpretations of FRS (“[NT FRS”) that ame ralavant to its operations.
The adoption of these new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs does not result in changes to the School's
scenunting policies and has no matarial effect an the amounts reparted for the current or pror years.

2.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financal assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the statement
of financial position when the School becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

10
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

2.1.1 Financial assets

Debt instruments mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, cther receivables and job support
schame seglram receivables that meet the following conditions and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business maodel whose objactive s to hald finandial assess in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractusl terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of prindpal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interast method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of 2 debt instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant paeriod.

The affactiva intarast rata is the rata that exactly discounts astimated future cash recaipts (including all
fees and points paid or recelved that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where approprate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is maasured at initial
recognition minus the principa! repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity ameunt, adjusted for
any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carmrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised
cost of a financial assat bafore adjusting for any loss allowance.

Intarast s recogrisad using the effactive intasast mathad for debt instruments maasurad subsaqueantly
at amortised cost, excapt for short-term balances when the effect of discounting |5 Immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

The Schocl recognises a loss allowance for expected cradit ossas ("ECL") on other receivables.
The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
nsk since initial recognition of the respactive financial instrument,

For all financial instruments, tha School recognises lifetima ECL when thare has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the finandal
instrument has ot increassed significantly since intial recognition, the Schocl measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrumant at an amount aqual to 12-month ECL. The assessment of
whathar lifetima ECL should be recognisad s based en significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default ccocuming since initial recognition instead of on evidance of a financal assat being
credit-impaired at the repoming date or an actual default eccurnng.

11
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

Significant increase in eredit risk

In assessing whethar the credit nsk on a financal instrument has increased significantly since initig
recognition, the School compares the risk of a default occurming on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial iInstrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the School considers historical loss rates for each category of
debtors and ad]usts to reflect current and forward-locking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

If cradit risk has not increased significartly since Initial recognition or if the credit quality of the
financial instruments improves such that there is no longsr a significant increase in credit risk since
Initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs,

Definition of default

The School considers that dafault has occurred when informaticn developad internally or abtained
from external sources Indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay Its creditors, incuding the School,
in full withouwt recourse by the School to actions such as raalising security hald (if any).

Credit-impaired finandal assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one o more events that have a detnmental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.

Write-off policy

The Scheol writes off a financial asset when there s information indicating that the counterparty is in
savere finandal difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has bean placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptey procesdings. Financial sssets written
off may still be subject to anforcement activities under the School’s racovery procaduras, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made ane recognised |n income or expenditure.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

Far financizl assets, the expected credit |oss is estimated as the differance betwean all contractual
cash flows that are dus to the School in 2ocordence with the contract anc all the cash flows that the
School expects to receive, discounted at the oniginal effective interest rate.

If the School has measured the loss allowanca for a financial instrumeant at an amount equal to |ifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions

for fetime ECL sre no longer met, the Schosl measures the loss allowance st an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date.

12
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

Derecognition of financial assets

The School derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially ail the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to ancther entity. If the School neither transfers nor retains substantially all the nsks and
rewards of cwnarship and continues to control the transferrad asset, the School recognises its retained
interest in the assst and an associated liabiity for amounts it may have to pay. If the School retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Schoo!
continues to recognise the financal asset and also recognisas a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds raceived.

2.3.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the School are dassified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the defintions of a financial liability.

Amounts due to the HQ, other payables and accrued expenses and deferred job support scheme grant
incoma ara intially measured at fair value, and are subsequantly measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interast method, except for short-term payables when the effact of discounting is
immatarial.
The Schoal derecognises financial liabilities when, and only whan, the Schoal’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired.

24 EQUIPMENT - Equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulatad
impairment loss,
Equipmant casting 51,000 or less is wnttan off in the year of acquisition,

Depreciation of equipment is charged on a straight-line mathod over the expected useful lives of the
assets concemad. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are:

Furniture and fittings = 15%
Computers - 50%
Office equipmant - 15%
Renovations = 10%

The estimated useful lives and depreciation mathod are reviewed at the and of each raporting percd,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain o lass arising on disposal or retirement of an item of eguipment s datermined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is racognised In
income or expenditure.

Fully depreciated assets still in use are retainad in tha financial statements.

13
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

2.5 IMPAIRMENT OF MON-FINAMNCIAL ASSETS - At the end of aach reporting pericd, the School reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-fimancial 2ssets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to datermine the extent of the impairmeant loss (if any), Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable ameount of an individual asset, the Scheol estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use, In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valua of monay and the nisks specific to the
asset for which the estimated future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-genersting unit) is estimated to ba less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Animpairment loss is recognized immediztely in income or expenditure,

Whe=s an impairment loss subsaquently reverses, tha carmying amount of the assat (cash-ganerating unit)
is Increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased
carrying armount does not axceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss bean recognised for the asset (cash-genarating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
imparmant |oss s recognised immadiataly in Incame or expenditure.

2.6 PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the School has 2 present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that tha School will ba required to sattle the onligation,
and a reliable estmate can be made of tha amount of the obligation,

The amount recognisad as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settie the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the nsks and uncartainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision (s measured using the cash flows estimated to settie
the present. obligation, its carmying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some o all of the economic banafits raquirad to saftle a prevision ars expectad to be racovered
frem a third party, the receivable is recognisad as an assat if it s virtually certain that relmbursement
will be recaived and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.7 DEFERRED CAPITAL DONATIONS - Donations for the acquisition of equipment are taken to the deferred
capital donations account and recognised as income over the useful lives of the assets to match
depreciation of the assets purchesed with the related donations. Donatiors received for specific
purposes are accounted on a cash basis. This comprises govemment grants and contributions received
from donors to furnish ang equip the School.

2.8 LEASES - The School sssesses whethar a contract (s or contains s leass, at incaption of the contract.
The School recognises a right-of-use assat and a corasponding lease llability with respact to all leazs
arrangements in which it is the lessee, excapt for short-term leasas (defined as leases with & lease
tarm of 12 menths or less) and leases of low value assats. For thesa |aases, the School recognises the
iease payments as an operating expanse on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
another systematic basis is mora representative of the t'me pattern in which aconomic benefits from
the leased assets are consumed.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

2.9 GENERAL RESERVES - This arises from the excess monies not required to be refunded ta the MOE and
the NCSS / SGE and from net operating surpluses generated and is restricted for the Schocl only, for
the banefit of its intandad cliants, according to the funder's intant for the use of monies. The Resarves
will rot be transferred out of tha Schocl for any other purposes. The Reserves will also not be re-
designated for other purposas, unless approval is given by the fundar.

£.10 SPECIFIC FUNDS - The funds comprise the cumulative opemating surplus or deficit ansing from the
spedfic incomea and expenditure account. Donations received for spedific purposes are accounted for
on a cash basis. The specific funds are utilised in accordance with its intendad purpose. Amounts not
utilised are accumulated in the specific funds.

2.11 UNRESTRICTED FUNDS - The funds comprise donations received that can be utilised in areas whare
funds are most reeded, & the discretion of the School Management Committae asnd the Executive
Committes,

2.12 PROGRAMME DEVELOPMENT FUND - Programmes receiving NCSS / SGE grants under a "Per Capita”™
funding policy are allowed to start a Programme Development Fund. This represents the portion of
income retained by the School and was computed based on 50% of unrestricted donations, ar 5% of
total operating expenditure whichever is lower,

2.13 TRUST FUMDS - Monies received for trust funds are credited directly to the respective trust funds’
financial statements, Income and expenditurs, assets and liabilities of trust funcs are segregated from
that of the School.

2.14 RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE - The School recognises income when it transfers
control of a product or service to a customer.
Cash donations
Cash donations are recogrisad on a cash basis.

Grants from MOE and NCSS / SGE

Grants recelved from MOE and NCSS [ SGE are recognised on an accrual basis. Any surplus or deficit
of |l',l.‘:'lding will be zccourted for as pavable o recoverable after it s finalised with the relevant
autharities.

Sale of goods
Revenue is measured based on the corsidaration specified in a centract with a customer and excludes

amounts collected on behaif of third parties. The School recognises revenue when it transfers control
of the goods to & customer.

Rendering of sarvicas

Revenue from rendering of services are recognised when the services are provided.

15
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

School fees
School fees are recognised on an accrual basis in the period to which it relates.

Interast incoma

Interest income s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the prncpal cutstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.

Expenditure

Expenditure is accounted for on the accrual basis.

2.15 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - Paymants to definad contribution retirement banafit plans are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered the services entitling them to the contnbutions.
Paymants made o state-managed retiremant banafit schamas, such as the Singapore Central Providiant
Fund, are dasit with 25 paymants 1o defined contribution plans whers the School’s obligations undar
tha plans are aquivalent to those arising in a defined contrbution retimment banefit plan.

2.16 EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT - Employes ertitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a resuit of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the School’s accounting policies, which are described in Nate 2, the School
Maragement Committes = required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
earrying amounts of assars and liabilnes that ara not readily apparent from other soureas. The estimates
and assoclated assumptions are based on histoncal experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual resuts may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accourting
estimates are recognised in the penod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
paried, orin tha paricd of the revision and future pariods if the revision affects both current and future
periods,

Critical judgements in applying the School’s ting p

School Mansgement Committae is not aware of any critical judgments that have significant effect on
the amounts rezogrised in the financial statamants,

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Tha School doas not have any kay sources of estimation uncestainty at the end of the reporting pericd
that have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
habifities within the next financial year.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
(a) financial instrum

The following table sets out the financial Instruments as at the end of the reporting period:

2021 2020
s 5
Financial assets

At amortised cost 6,123,853 4,190,414

Financial liabilities

At amortised cost 994 616 670,351

(b)

The School has limited exposure to financial nsks. There has been no changs to the School’s
exposure to the financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures these risks.

The School Is funded primarily via grants and donations and it attempts to ensure sufficient
ligudity at all tmes through efficient cash management, It places its cash with creditworthy
financial |nstitutiaons, At the end of the reparting periad, thers |s no significant concentration of
credit Aisk. Thare are no foreign currency transactions.

Changes in interest rates do not have a material impact on the School & |t does not have any
interest-bearing liabilities and its interest-bearing asset only relstes to cash at bank.

All financial fiabilities are repayable on demand or due within 12 months from the end of the
reporting period.

The carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities reported 10 the statement of
financial position approximate their fair valuas, due to the relatively shart-tarm maturity of these
financial instruments.

()

The School reviews its capital structurg at laast annually to ensure that the School will be able
to conminue as a going concern. The capital structure of the Scheol comprises mainly its general
resarves, funds and grants from MOE and NCSS / SGE. Tha School's overall strategy remains
unchanged from the previous financial year.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Some of the School's transactions and arrangements are with a related party, Cerebral Palsy Alliance
Singapore Headquarters, and the effect of these on the basis determined between the parties are
reflected in these financial stataments. The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

damand.
Signficant related party transactions during the year was as follows:
2021 2020
$ $

Occupational therapy 410,421 412,538
Physiotherapy 409,890 419,150
Psychology 162,211 189,590
Speach and language therapy 395,626 396,112
Social work services 177,852 195,688
Professional fees 1,556,000 1,613,078
TOL fees ralating to short-term leases recharged 668,553 668,553

Professional feas refered to the allied health prefessionals from the HQ that provided rehabilitation
sarvices to the School.

(u] i ma nnel

The remuneration of members of key management during the year was as follows:

2021 2020
$ $
Short-term benefits 164,213 167,063
Post-amploymant benafits 14,068 14,150
178,281 181,213

The number of members of key management with remuneration within the below band dunng the
year was as follows;

2021 2020
5 §

Remuneration Band
$100,000 to $200,000 * 1 1

*  Comprisad salary and bonus. It indudes staff seconded to the School.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

6 QTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

2021 2020
5 5
COthe recsivables 8,209 -
Fees in arrears 10,230 11,157
Prepayments 18,623 36,622
36,162 47,779
7  EQUIPMENT
Furniture Office
and fittings  Comauters  equipment  Renowvation Total
5 5 3 & $
Cost:
At April 1, 2019 279,443 206,173 334,466 633,719 1,453,801
Additions 85,082 35,047 7,042 55,663 186,834
Disposals . (2,398) - - (2,398)
Ar March 31, 2020 364,525 238,822 341,508 693,382 1,638,237
Additinns 9,747 95,523 30,986 197,328 333 584
Disposals - . (2,091) - (2,091)
At March 31, 2021 374,272 334,345 370,403 890,710 1989730
Accumulated depreciation;
At Apnl 1, 2019 151,174 174,803 164,425 74,111 564,513
Depreciation 37,923 39,930 41,723 65,791 185,367
Disposals = (2, 398) = - (2,398)
At March 31, 2020 189,087 212,335 206,148 138,902 747 482
Depreciation 41,561 51,700 43,543 80,000 217,003
Disposals = = (653) = (653)
At March 31, 2021 230,658 264,044 249,138 219,992 963,832
Carrying amount:
At March 31, 2021 143,614 70,301 121,265 670,718 1,005,898
At March 31, 2020 175,428 26 487 135,360 553,480 890,755
19
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

B OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

2021 2020
$ : |
Fees recelved in advance 22,477 20,700
Advarces from MOE 56,188 55,886
Cther payables 148,837 81,369
Accrued expenses 235,388 203,165
462,801 361,120

9 DEFERRED CAPITAL DOMATIONS

This fund was set up during the year ended March 31, 2014 to record denations and funds recaived
for the cost of equipment, which will be amortisea based on the est:mated usaful life of the eguipment.

2021 2020
$ $
Donations received:
Balance at beginning of yaar 952,154 895,595
Additions:
= Fumiture and fittings 7414 14,552
- Computars 95,311 33,397
- Cffice equipment 14,591 2,398
- Renovations 26,435 4,612
Disposals (2,001] =2
Balance at and of year 1,093,814 952,154
Accumulated amortisation:
Balanue at beginning of year 478,721 344,206
Amaortisation 141,774 134,515
Disposals (653] =
Balance at and of year 619,842 478,721
Carrying amount 473,972 473,433
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

The assets held under each fund mainly compnse cash and cash equivalents, The utilisation of specific
funds are restricted for the intended purposas of the respective funds.

“The Spedific Funds are described balow:

ilding and Faciliti iy Ei

g::i? fund pertains to donations received for renovation, upgrading and maintaining the building
ilities

School Functions Grant

This grant pertains to donations received for school functions or events, such as graduation day, racial
harmony day, children’s day and sports day.

Programme Enhancement Fund

This fund is used to enhance the sducational cortent of programmes to train teachers t suppor

students with spedal neads. Donations given mainly for teaching metanals, resources, equipment o
teaching aids.

Pup| Welfare Fund
This fund is used to heip tha financally neady students in subsidising their faes, transport and welfare
neads. Donations given mainly for the welfare of pupils.
MOE Edusave Grant/Achisvement Award
This grant is used mainly for enrichment pregrammes, such as special art instructors, sports activities,
such as hiring of swimming coachas, track and field coaches and scouting activities, as well as
resources and equipment to benefit students. The achievement award is to recognise achigvement
and progress of SPED school students.

A | Grant for Ci i i ial Assistanc i)
This grant & to provide funding for the School Management Committee to adminster DFA
(e.g. transport allowances and meal coupons) to benefit Singaporean students who do not meaet the
qualifying criteria for the SPED FAS, as wall as provide additional assistance to those on the SPED FAS.
Transport Subsicy Fund
This fund partalns to donations received from the public for transportation fees for students. This is
for transportation by private transport.
MOE Training Votes Fund

This fund is used for staff taining which is one of the key components for upgrading of skills to remain
relevant.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

MCE Oportunity Fund

One time off grant given by MCE. It is meant to level up ennchment opportunities for students who
are Singapore Citizen from lower income ds.

MOE High Fund

This fund Is to provide SPED Schools with additional resources to support students with exceptionally
high needs upon approval by High Needs Grant Panel.

BAC Tote Fund

This fund pertains to NAC funding either through NAC-AEP (Arts Education Programme) or NAC-AISS
(Artist in Schoal Scheme) programme. Under AEP, it aims to provide all studants with access o quality
arts aducation programmes through the Schoal. Under AISS, it aims to provide suppert, collaborations
between schools and practising Singapore artists, and writers to co-develop customisad arts education
programmes to meat the needs of the School and studants,

This fund consists of the ICT Manpower Grant and ICT Equipment and Services Grant. The ICT Manpower
Grant provides the School with funds to hire an Information Technology (IT) Professional to support
teachers in the implementation of ICT-anhanced lessons in the dassrooms, The ICT Equipment and
Services Grant provides the School with funds for [T equipment and 1T-related services.

MOE Currculum Enhancemant Fund (CEF)

This furd s used for school-based initistives or activities related to curricula and co-curricular
davelopment and reform.

MOE A C h Fun:

This fund Is used to provida schools with additional resources to refine their curriculum In alignment
with the SPED Curriculum Framawork,

Children's C : iation Fund

This fund is primanily used for the ourchase of mobilityfequipment aids for use in the School and to
dafray the cost of spacialised squipment purchasad by financally neady studants,

MOE SPED FAS

This fund is to provide needy students in SPED schools with waiver of school feas, free uniforms and
textbooks,

24
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

L -, | P MM

This fund Is to pravide SPED FAS students aged 6 to 20 years old with distursemants for maals,

MOE Pubiic Transport Subsidy

This fund is o provide a subsidy of $10 per month (or $120 per year) to each SPED FAS recpient who
declares that he/she takes public transport ta the Schoal, for as long as they are enmolled in the School.
MOE Secondment Fund

This fund |s used to reimburse the Schaol for the differential betwaen actual costs of MOE-seconded
princpal/teachers, based on MOE's salery packages.

MMOE Contract Teaching Resources

To reimburss schools which engage contract teachers to cover taaching duties of staff undergoing
Diploma in Special Education (DISE), Advariced DISE and Managemant and Leadership in Schools
courses, as well as staff who are away on MOE Masters Scholarship,

MOE S2W Start Up Fund

This fund is used to support the S2W implementation efforts In Phase 3 and ¢ SPED schocls through
the hiring of one Job Coach per school,

MOE Parent Supgort Group

To enabla SPED schools ts anhance tha |avel of parental engagament and organise parant-related
activities on a regular basis,

I i L E

This is also known as the Trailblazer-Chan Chiew Ping Spedial School Fund, The fund is used to help

students from low-income families in the areas of transport, meals, medications, uniforms, textbooks
and stationenes,

25

Financial Year 2020/21 | Annual Report




8
5
K
a2
9¢ 2
2
I
g
B ToeF PEETOL o8 TOEE 1Z0T "1E YRl 22 BouR|eg m
1596 0PS) Te6c #1J To0E 24] Tooe) [E43) aimypuadxs oL £
[EEEET - ; . - A0S PUL 447 'SOENUDG SOLRIES [|1A
E = {o0e’aL) = - Buiugen g Juawdop rap ias (A
(665" 1) - - - ABp | 71 Jsaay, woddns o 1 o ageydng (A
= i (£09) SRIER/SHOCNT SRR M JUSPrIs SSpg (M
- - - (zze's) SDILLMORE | RO, ABUOL 395304 ()1}
= = = (oog) (£8£'T) jiodsuesy (0
- B . - 11zl B0 ooyrs (1
SRR 5
S9L0rS gc0'et S0L'8L []¢3 918's Sadi3381 IO PPV
- 741 S66"LT 4 POR'S 0Z0T ‘TE YauelW 32 douRjeg
(SEFELR] {sEv'LT) {50122} {ost) (96£'3] sum|puadxs oy
(9EVETE) " - - - HAS PUR 4 *$28NUDY ‘SBRES (|10
& = {sor'ze) 5 - Bunien g usuwdcs sep jyas (s
(8E¥'LT) - - - ADp jeud | soddns oy o y2ungd (A
s g (£L6) SRR/ SYOCAT/SBIRBM JUSPIS JBRG (M
(££9°E) SBOLDMONE B3 ABUOL 38020 (1IN
N = < {ost) (oet) yiodsuziy (1
. - - (0z£'t) 539 100yrs (1
SIren Ry ew]
2EFETF 0051 759'6L 24 QBE'ET Sjdia38: 301 SPPY
- 000'E 0T - 08’z 610T 1 pudy 32 asuejeg
$ s % s $
pund speen pung pung ApEang Va0 o) ein
YBIH 30MW ;qop Bupuiell  a30A Bujuieal Hodsuesy |EnuuY 30W
1ruoiyppY HYISs 30 gnd 30W
I0W
IEMO|0) S8 PBSA|RUR JBLLIMN BO URD SPUNY Ioads By) j0 anjjpuadxe pue SsdBoa) Byl
1Z0T "'TE WIeW
SINIWILVLS TWVIDNYNI4 OL SILON
TOOHIS FHOJYONIS FIONVITIV ASTVd TVHEIHID




Si6alk ForaE -
= 1016'5¢) 52z 01}
- IGITHT4] -
- - (zor'e)
. . (£E¥)
- - (oea's)
. . 8zy'e
BPS'OLT 1L0'8T sv0'e
LTY'06T £ar'or zss
= (o] [ 7503]
= [&se"81) =
- - (820'e)
- - (z21)
- - (oza'®)
- - IS¢’y
£B5'801 SET'9 BIFL
oreiet vl EOF

$ $ ]

pung %ﬁmn sS4
JuswWpPUOIAS 122 a3ds I0W
30M 190Yy>5 30K

L2

TT07 “TF YaJeld 12 20uRieg

aum|puadse (8o)

Setuedne dwweiboud (bapy (M
BME Pops (m

syooqeRl (0

Apisqns sesj powps {1
FTOPURIR S (REw T

Hise) 395 / SSON PPY
S30@383 I0W PPV

OTOZ "TE YR 1@ AauR(eg

auN|pusde (Bo)

sosuDdXD susweIBoid (Bag (A
2Pe powps (N

ooqmeal (0

Amsgns 9 joops (1
BrEpUsaNS TS

0d89: SSIN i PPY
30321 J0W PPV

6102 'L gy 3@ 2aumjeg

1Z0Z "TE WaeW
SINIWALYLS TVIINVNIL OL SILON

TOOHIS IHOAVONIS IDNVITIV ASTVd TVHEINID

Financial Year 2020/21 | Annual Report




8
&
pd
T4 s
2
i
g
i LLS'ER (=730 3 508'5E 1202 “1E ynep @ souejeg m
- - - 1589750) 589°5C siajsuiy H
188; {66 0p) (0TS sE) {S90ETT) (sig'ws) aunyipusdxs eycy
158) . T - - SBIIARIIE DUBIEY (A
= (eLe'ow) fogs sg) - sosusding S0 ARS pue Juswd inbe pue sssuadse semoduri 13f (M
w = . {s90'e1t) - RS0 Jamodusiy/aonn (N
- - - - (sB8'cS) (syooq *sjesmqEw Loueasal "6 a) semosa [FUSqEL o BsELInd (8
(166} SONAIDE JO BEBYSING (1
| 7
£6E°T 0TL LS 0TS BE 05£'86T 444 DA ICK PPV
£05 GES'0E 081 - LTz OTO? *TE YdJep) 1€ Se 2duejeg
[ETYE 3§ EYaAE SIsURIL
Tese Ty (0ZLET) (0TS 8E] (PSTYTT) {665 6/ punyipuadxa [eyeL
leee™) - = = = WA Ie Quatey (A
= {oze’ze) fozs'sg) = sasuadid $82/Ae5 pue Juaid nba pue sasuadi@ samoduewl (O] (M
- = {rsZ'vLl) - 502 semodusyfsisps (18
5 (192'sy) (syo0q "s|eURIRW YIUeass) "0 ) SaCUNOE [RURNEW jo Bsaying (0
(8EE"1) sAIAIBE O BERAING (1
Ea s re g |
0058t BEFES 190°8C 00001 0sT'Er 0da0as JCKH PPV
Fa3 =4 = ose's 6107 "1 |1dy 1@ Soueeg
$ $ $ 3 3
dnoin UeIn S231ADS el 4327 30KH 432 30W
Ppue ju ¥
Jusaeg JOW 421 - Jueign 421 - JuRsn
JUBWEDEAREG  JWIWdoaAAa
43T 30H A31 30HW
20T 'LE Wen
SINFWIALYLS TVIDONVYNI4 OL SILON
TOOHIS FHOAVINIS FINVITIV ASTVd TVHEIHIAD




BE

713 065 501 718
[0 (65" 19] {Ees’ (1) [ce'ss)
Teess) - - -

. (6£5°19) ({17844 -

& ] - (£89'ps)

0005 158°201 osz'zl £69'¥5

€Ll wE've

TZ7aw] |G 1600 6] TR
{5671) - - -
(rsp'e) . -

= (61£789) (000’ 66) =

. . l9mE'8eT)
- 158'zot 0006t 98E'8E1
000°s wl1'1c - -
s $ $ &
paemy Lﬂm—-! pung SB8NOsSaY
uoREAcuu] uupy dn ues Buppeay
® paemy 40 LOIEIADIY MZSIOW  PERUOD IOW
Jayoeay
Guipumsing
395/S50N
-A0W

1202 "FE Yaui 3% @auvvg

wimgpuede eIy
suopedunLiwed (1
BaOURMO| B B EeUEes (0
sasusdne Bujyoe Leaued (1
TP TR T

SRR IO PPy

DZOZ “TE Y EW 38 B2UG eg
umpUSdxD je30)

Juawdeganap g buien yus (v
SUOREIURWLWLIED (il

saouemoje g sauges (v
sssuDdno Buiydes eauos (1
SITpURATT 15591

s1d=moa J0W (PPY

6102 "1 pdy 2@ Sxuejen

TZ0T 'IE WPIeW

SINIWILYLS IWIDNYNTY O1 S3LON
TOOHIS FHOAVINIS FONVITIV ASTVd TVHEIHID

Financial Year 2020/21 | Annual Report




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

11 NET ASSETS OF TRUST FUNDS

Trust funds represent specific financial assistance provided by Lee Foundation.

2021 2020
3 3
Balance at beginning of year 398,207 24,500
Amount received 74,980 83,020
Amount disbursed (91,911) (68,313)
Balance at end of year, represented by cash and bank balances 22,276 39,207
12 GRANTS FROM NCSS f SGE
2021 2020
% 5
Total operating expenditures 1,848,046 1,705,326
Annual adjustments for prior year - 13,720
Transition planning co-ordinator 35412 35412

1,883,458 1,754,458

13 DONATIONS

2021 2020
$ $
Designated donations received during the year are made up of:
= Programme enhancament 106,942 122,196
- Pupil walfare L. 000 -
- Transport subsidies - 400
- School functions 24,1% 15,800
- Childran's charnity assodation 53,24% 47,270
= Building and facilities improvemant 100 =
180 487 185,666
14 MANPCWER COSTS
2021 2020
S ]
Cost of defined contribution plans included in manpowear costs 672 DBG 658 706

15 TAXATION

&ll registered and exsmpt chenties will enjoy automatic income tax exemption and charities do not
need to file income tax effective from Year of Assessment 2008,

30
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

16 TAX EXEMPT RECEIPTS

The School enjoys a concessionary tax treatmert whereby qualifying donors are granted 2.5 times tax
daduction for the donations made to the School.

2021 2020
3 §
Denatjons for which tax exempt recelpts were ssued 29,600 20,121
Breakdown of tax deductible and non-tax deductible donations:
2021 2020
$ $
Unsolicited donations
Tax deductible donations 6,000 1,400
Non-tax deductible conations 7,988 69,839
13,588 71,239
Designated donations
Tax deductible denations. 23,600 18,721
Non-tax deductible donations 165 887 166,945
189 487 185,666

3
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

17 MONTHLY PUPIL ELIGIBLE FOR FUNDING
Mumber of
International Pupils
MNumber of Pupils By Paying Concessionary

Disability Group - Rate of School Fees. Tota! Number
Multiple Disabllities (Nete C) of Bupils
ta) (b) (e)=(a) +(b)
April 1, 2020 216 8 224
May 1, 2020 (Note A) 216 2 225
June 1, 2020 216 8 234
July 1, 2020 219 & 227
August 1, 2020 219 5 227
Septermnber 1, 2020 220 8 228
October 1, 2020 221 8 229
November 1, 2020 24 7 23
December 1, 2020 224 ? 231
January 1, 2021 (Note B) 237 & 243
February 1, 2021 240 6 245
March 1, 2021 z41 3 247

Note;

(A) AsMay 1, 2020 was a public holiday, the number of pupils on April 30, 2020 was used for pupil
anrolment on May 1, 2020,

(B) As January 1, 2021 was a public and school holidays respectively, the number of pupils en
Cecember 31, 2020 was used for pupil enrolmant on January 1, 2021,

(C) International pupils who are paying the concessionary retes of school fees {Singapore Permanent
Resident fee ratas) under the 2 years gracs penod.

32
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

16 MONTHLY PUPIL ENROLMENT FOR INTERNATIONAL PUPILS

International pupils are defined as those who are not of Snoaporean Citlzen (SC) or Perrmanent
Resigence (SPR) status, and who do not pay concessianary rate of school fees,

Number of Mumber of
International International Total Number
Pupils” Pupils™® of Pupils

(a) (b) (c) = (a) + (b)
April 1, 2020 1 B 1
May 1, 2020 {Note A) 1 - 1
June 1, 2020 1 - Lf
July 1, 2020 1 - 1
August 1, 2020 1 £ £
September 1, 2020 1 a 1
Octcber 1, 2020 1 = i
November 1, 2020 1 - i
December 1, 2020 1 . i
January 1, 2021 {Note B) 1 - 1
February 1, 2021 1 - 1
March 1, 2021 1 - 1

Lote:

(A) AsMay 1, 2020 was a public holiday, the number of pupils on Apnl 30, 2020 was used for pupil
anralmant on May 1, 2020,

(B) As January 1, 2021 was a public and school holidays respectively, the number of pupils on
December 31, 2020 was used for pupil enrolment on January 1, 2021,

= International students who are children of employment pess holders, skilled workers or
dipiomatic staffs.

== Intermational students who are not children of employment pass holders, skilled workers or
diplomatic staffs.
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Deloitte.

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
(Charity Registration No. 00073 and
Societies Registration Mo. 0283/1957WEL)

SPECIAL PURPOSE REPORT ON
BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AND STATEMENT OF RESERVES

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinlon of the members of the Executive Committes of Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore (the
“Association”), the statement of comprehensive income and statement of reserves (the "Statements”) of the
Beyond Boundaries Club for the year ended March 31, 2021 are prepared in all material respects, In
accordance with the basis of accounting described in notes to the statements and provisions of the Societies
Act, Chapter 311 (the “Socleties Act”) and the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and other relevant regulations (the
“Charities Act”™).

ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

September 20, 2021
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- Daoitte & Touehe LLP

Usaique Entity No. TOSLLOTZA
Deloitte.

OUE Dommtown 2

#3300

Sngapore DGES0A

Tet +65 8224 8268
Fax +65 6538 6166

W DeloRCe comyig
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB
Opinion
We have audited the it of compreh e income and statement of reserves (the "Statements”) of

the Beyond Boundaries Club for the year ended March 31, 2021, and the notes to the statements, including
a summary of significant accounting polickes, as set out on pages 5to 7.

In our opinion, the Statements of the Beyond Boundaries Club for the year ended March 31, 2021 are
prepared in all material respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in the notes to the
statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("SSAs”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further descnbed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Bey ies Club In accordance with the Accounting
and Corporate Regulatory Autharity Code of Pmﬁ?ssmna'! Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities ("ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ACRA Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

We draw attention to the notes to the staterments, which describes the basis of accounting. The Statements
are prepared to assist the Beyond Boundaries Club to meet the requirements of reporting to the National
Council of Social Service ("NCSS™) / SG Enable ("SGE"). As a result, the Staternents may not be suitable for
another purpose. Our report is intended solely for the Beyond Boundaries Club and NCSS / SGE and should not
be distributed to parties other than the Beyond Boundaries Ciub or NCSS / SGE. Our opinion Is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Information Other than the St and Auditor’s Report Th

Management is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the Statement by the
Executive Committee set out on page 1.

Qur opinion on the Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the St S, OUr resp bility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially Iinconsistent with the S or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB

Responsibilities of Management and Executive Committee for the Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the Statements in accordance with the basis of accounting
described in the notes to the statements, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the pre; tion of the S that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error,

In preparing the ts, manag t Is responsible for 1g the Beyond Boundaries Club’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters related to going cancern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Beyond Boundaries
Club or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Executive Committee is responsible for overseeing the Beyond B jes Club’s financial reporting
process.,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statements are free from materiai
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with S5As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting frorn fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, | or i misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the drcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Beyond Boundaries Club’s internal control,

{c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, if any, and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bayond Boundaries Club’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Statements or, i such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Beyond
Boundaries Club to cease to continue as a going concern.,
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Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB

We communicate with the Executive Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

P&’é’:dz ,E {fpm{ 'W"—‘b
Public Accountants and

Chartered Accountants

Singapore

September 20, 2021
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CEREERAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
March 31, 2021

2021 2020
¢ 4

INCOME
Grants frem Naticnal Council of Social Servica ("NCS5") / SG Enable ("SGE") 100,974 99,131
Mscellansous grants - MediaCarp enabling fund 20,000 -
Alumni sales 8,018 353
Total income 128,992 98 484
EXPENDITURE
Manpower and related costs

- Salanes and related costs 54,463 40,278

- Staff welfare 406 200

- S training - 232
General and administrative expenses

- Communications 1 &4

- Imsurance 193 -

- Miscellaneous expenses 346 =

- Supplies and materials 429 260

- Professional rehabilitation fees 13,083 -
Programmea/Prajact expenses

- Public education/campaigns 20,200 -

- Beyond boundaries club activity expenses. 11,419 12,829
Total expenditure 100,557 53,861
Operating surplus, representing

total comprehensive income for the year 28,435 45623
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CEREERAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB

STATEMENT OF RESERVES
March 31, 2021

Accumulated
fund
$
Operating surplus, representing tota! comprehensive income for the year and
balance at March 31, 2020 45,623
Operating surpius, represanting total comprehensive income for the year 28,435
Balance at March 31, 2021 74,058
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CEREERAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB

NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS
March 31, 2021

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The statement of comprehensive income and statement of resarves are prepared based on the significant
Bccounting policies below which are in sccordance with the historical cost basis and are drawn up in sccerdance
with the Sccieties Act, Chapter 311 (the "Societies Act™) and the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and other reavant
regulations (the "Charities Act”).

L

2.

Cash donations are recognisad on a cash basis,

Grants raceived from Mational Council of Social Service f SG Enable and Ministry of Soaal and Family
Development are recogrisad on an accrual basis.

Caretral Palsy Alliance Singapora recognises income when it transfers control of a good or renders servica
to a customer.

Programme fees are recognised when the services are rendered,

Expenditure relatas only to operating expenses incurred in the runming of the programma and ars
recognisad on an accrual basis,

The accumulated fund is restricted for the operations of this programme anly, for the benefit of its
intendad dients, In keaoing with the funder’/dorors’ intent for the use of the monies, the funds will not
be transferred out of the programme for other purposss.,
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